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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Streef, Hamilion HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

acfivities:

e foundation piling

*  property development

O property investment and management

*  machinery leasing and trading

*  electrical and mechanical ("E&M”) engineering

The holding company of the Company is Tides Holdings Il lid., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and ultimately
controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P., which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") [which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferprefations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”]. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial stafements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred fo as the
"Group’| for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating fo fransactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i] the assefs
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, [ii] the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assefs or liabilities.
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22 BHBERREZEZEH 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
AEEENRERNFERBRKREE R The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
R TFIRR] M ERT BB S first time for the current year's financial statements.
AR o
BERIBEE BEMBHREER HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption
BAF 1z FIRIBEIEL of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
&5] RNE B Standards — Government loans
BRI — BT
B3
BRUB®RE EEMEREEL HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financiol Instruments:
RAE7 Wz  B7RIEEH Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
&3] TA : %E-A and Financial liabilities
EE
BEMBEHRSE AHEUBEX HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AR 105
BEMBWSE AELH HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
LERIFE 11 5%
BEMGHRSE HKERAMERZ HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HRFE12%  Bm
ERHmE AAUBHREER HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
RRE10% - F10% BB and HKFRS 12 HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance
BEMBGWME  MBHREER Amendments

HAFHE F1REES
REBMH s 2R

HEAER F125R21E5]
B2 2 —BEHES
1&57
BRMERE A FEEASE HKFRS 13 Fair Valve Measurement
%BIIZE 1357
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Presentation

HKAS 1 Amendments

of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benelfis
HKAS 27 (2011) Separafe Financial Statements
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HKAS 36 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-financial Assets (early adopted)

HK(IFRICHnt 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued

20092011 Cycle in June 2012
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect

on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

[al)

(bl

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements and addresses the issues
in HK(SICHnt 12 Consolidation = Special Purpose Entities. It
establishes a single control model used for determining which
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in
HKFRS 10, an invesfor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, fo variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability fo use ifs power over the
investee fo affect the amount of the invesfor's refurns. The changes
infroduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group fo
exercise significant judgement fo defermine which entities are
controlled. The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any
of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and sfructured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separafe Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associafes. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities. Defails of the disclosures
for subsidiaries and associates are included in notes 17 and 18
fo the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

(c]

(d)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required fo use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where ifs use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption has had no
material impact on the Group's fair value measurements. As a
result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring fair
value have been amended. Additional disclosures required by
HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of invesiment properties
and financial instruments are included in nofes 15 and 43 to the
financial statements. The application of this new standard has no
material financial impact on the Group.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income ("OCI"). ltems that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in fime (for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on availableforsale financial assets) are
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments have affected the presentation only and have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been
restated fo reflect the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen
fo use the new fitle “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.

FE R 20132014
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2.3 BREMEEARER 2 EBYER

g

AEB AR BHRRAUTER
B RERZHR] MBI BB B

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HER

BRMG®E HHFILA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HERIZE Q5%

BEMBHSE  HHETRETEE HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments to
ERIE Q5% - B EER and HKAS 39 HKFRS @ HKFRS 7 and HKAS 3%*
BEMBWE F W BEUK Amendments
BRIE7HRE  HEERIE 7 FR
BRGIER  BEZTEA
£3952 E 305"
fE7T

BEMBRE BIEBUBRE HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
ZRFE 109 ERIF 109 and HKAS 27 HKAS 27 (201 1) = Investment Entities'
BERBEmE AEVBRE (2011) Amendments
LRIFE125% BRI 125 R
REEGS ar-aE
2RI 27 5% %27 %

(=Z%—%) (=F——%)
ZIERT —REERE

BEMBWE EIIBEMBRS HKFRS 11 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
R 155 ZBIZE 115 Acquisitons of Inferests in Joint Operations’
ZIERT WHEEEFK

B BT B

BEMBHSE EHELKRF® HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
LERIFE 145

BAEER  ERIEAE A HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
F16%HR F16HREE Amendments Clarification of Acceptance Methodls
BEGREL  SFHERIFE 385 of Depreciation and Amortisation’
£ 385 EBITER#

ZIERT LR LS

BEEER  BIIEEEIER HKAS 19 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
F19%2 £ 195EE 1 Benefits — Defined Benefit
o —EEENE1E - Plans: Employee Contributions®

ES BRI
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offseffing

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

HKAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

— Novation of Derivatives and Continuation

of Hedge Accounting'
HK(IFRIC)Hnt 21 levies'
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments fo a number of HKFRSs issued
20102012 Cycle in January 20142
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
2011-2013 Cycle in January 20142

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is nof et in
a position fo state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on ifs results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those refumns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confraciual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term inferest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Investments in associates (Contd)

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position af the Group's share of net assefs under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the postacquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated stafement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and ifs associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
invesiments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assef transferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures ifs investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
assef or fransfer the liability fakes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market parficipants act in their economic best inferest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Fair valve measurement (Conta)

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1- based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2- based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant fo the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3— based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
fesfing for an asset is required (other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, construction contfract assefs,
financial assefs and investment properties), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
asset, unless the assef does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense cafegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the esfimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of an assef, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 XE2EHEEBEE) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
BEAL Related parties
ETHERT - -7 B RRE A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:
BzBEAL
(o) ZAR—BATHZALZEE [a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
B#ZAt and that person
) EHISRHERERAEE [il  has control or joint control over the Group;
i) HAEBBEATE: 3 i) has significant influence over the Group; or
i) BAAKEHINEELAQF (i} is a member of the key management personnel of the
ZEBRERAEBHER—F Group or of a parent of the Group;
KB
x or
b &K ARMNE THIER—EGEEZ (b)  the party is an enfity where any of the following conditions
R applies:
()] ZERBELAEEBER-—% (i the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
Bz E AT
i) —BBAZS—EB(HSE— (i) one entily is an associate or joint venture of the other entfity
ERZBRE WERAA (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
EAREN = PNEI DI N entity);
AgARERE
il ZERBEAEERFR-—% (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
ZHZEERE party;
iv) —BERAEFE=ZFEBZAE (iv)  one enfily is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
EEERFZ-BERBRE= entity is an associate of the third entity;
HERZBERR
V) “ERAANEEN—KH (v)  the enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
AEBRBEZERE of employees of either the Group or an entity related fo the
8 #)18 A i &% 60 18 A 12 48 Group;
FIEtEl
(vi) E%?E%ﬁ(o]ﬁﬁ?a/\i? il (vij the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
of FEEEH identified in (a); and
(vii) (o)) FTIEATHEREER (vil o person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over
TEYBLER(IZER the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel
ISYNCIDER 35PN =[: 0] ¢ of the entity [or of a parent of the entity).

m—HE o
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% it % B i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —E—ME=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assefs classified as held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assefs
fo its working condition and location for ifs infended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
info operation, such as repairs and mainfenance, is normally charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
sifuations where the recognition criferia are safisfied, the expenditure for
a maijor inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at infervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease Over the lease ferms

Buildings 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 331/3%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements 10%-33'/5%
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —ZE—WE=A=+—RH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation /(Contd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an invesiment property) held fo
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, invesiment properties are sfated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
propetties are included in the stafement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only fo terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets and ifs sale must

be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and financial assets)
classified as held for sale are measured af the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other cosfs directly atributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are infended for sale and are expected o be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current asses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs attributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

leases

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded fogether with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance cosfs of such leases
are charged to the sfatement of profit or loss so as fo provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operafing leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited fo the statement
of profit or loss on the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, renfals payable under operating leases are
charged fo the stafement of profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
cosfs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective

hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef ouf for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated af the date of inifial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related fo those of the host contracts and the
host confracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the stafement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Alter initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluafion reserve until the investment is derecognised, af
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve fo the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the availablefor-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Availablefor-sale financial investments /Conr @)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in esfimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and infention fo sell its available-
forsale financial assefs in the near term are sfill appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable fo frade these financial assefs
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial assef reclassified from the availableforsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective inferest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined fo be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equily is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

FE R 20132014

77



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

78

24 EBEBRBIE ()

AEBENER/ERFEREARETR
FKA-ReRMEES—HEREER
18 - MEE MR R B L —EXZ(E
EHBERACREEL —HSREE
WEAARREREXTE  LHZ
FELBEA AR ERAE - QG R
& - BUENREREEALREAT K
RE - BOIERNELAEXN - &
T R EE 2 P R SE T T A IS E A IA
FERHEMRARLEFARR S RE
R BRI SEat 8 - InEASTRE
NBABEEREE S B °

BBENTIIRCEHEE

RIRBHEAAT R ERMEEMS © AN
SEBERBEUGENEAZEREE

LEBAETR - AR EIEER
BEAZEREERCEBRETR - 4
AEBETENCHEEREERLE
FERENR  AEHEETHES
R e A-AFRUEERREE
ZEREE - KFREREE - HRE
BIERER G CEE  WEAREBRS
HEFFERR - QTS ARLRIRER
i

EREFM R EBRERRZEEL
FEELEGGHAXRERENBREH
RBEEZRRETER) 2REMELZ
ERAE - A ARRRERELRER
ZEBBEEZRERHXEN R
B8 2 BERRFIR)IH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —ZE—WE=A=+—RH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assefs that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
assef, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assefs that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate [i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recogniﬁon).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont )

Financial assets carried at amortised cost /Cont @)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues fo be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
writen off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred fo the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availablefor-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an invesiment or a group of invesiments is impaired.

If an availableforsale assef is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the stafement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd))

Availablefor-sale financial investments /Cont @)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised [i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

*  the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
assef.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont )

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has refained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither fransferred nor refained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the

of the

n that case, the Group also recognises

Group confinues to recognise he fransferred assef fo the exfent
Group's continuing involvement.
an associated liability. The Tronsferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has refained.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities af fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable fransaction

costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include frade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivative financial insfruments and a
loan from an associate.

FE R 20132014

81



82

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

B’l % i’é I‘ﬁ #I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 March 2014 —E—ME=/A=+—8H

24 EBEBERBIE ()

ETHEEE)

i
SHABRAARL RGBT -

BAVESARSEZEREE

BRAVER ARG SRA BRI
RHNEMABRRAVER ABSR
RS ERRIET < EBALE

ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ@1mamﬁﬁkﬁﬁ
CRIZERE BRI BARBERSA
% N EBEAREREEAGHAE
AIZE 395k AT R e 2 B R BB A T K 18 5
REHRTAZITESRMIA - BUHRA
ATETANRDERFERZALE - K
FEEWIETE ABBAE R TARSIER
W BERZARHEEEENEER
MR o RIBR KRN AT ERES
EREFETTeREMNRZELRAE
FTHIBR M FIE o

R PR I8 E AR A FER ABE
ZEMABRAENSERAHAEENS
BB GETERFE 30 WRIA MRERIETE -

ERREE

R IEREL - St RERREREER
NEBR XL BN A& @ﬁ
BYRLTERK - BISRBARTIER -
BEMIIGERREEBR a%ﬂfﬁﬁ
K WEREEEREBRRPER -

=
=

%%W$Z Bt RAEFK &R
i - M&%%fmﬂ DB
AR - BN R EHE T ARGER
ZBERAR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities /[Contd))

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial insfruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for frading unless they are designated as effective hedging insfruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any inferest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated af the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured ot amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are sfated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by faking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective inferest rafe amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities /Cont )

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offsef the recognised amounts and there is an
infention fo settle on a net basis, or fo realise the assefs and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, to hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value s
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

*  Where the Group expecis to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

*  Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

*  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
insfruments are seporoted info current portions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Confract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of cosfs incurred fo dafe fo the estimated tofal cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
fofal cost of the

the proportion of costs incurred fo date to the esfimated

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to date plus
recognised profifs less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a contract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the sftatements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including ferm deposits,
which are not restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance cosfs in the stafement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax relating
fo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacfed or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
faking into consideration inferprefations and pracfices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences af the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recogpnition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, ot the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the tfemporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will nof reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax [Contd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits

and unused fax losses can be ufilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
fime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the exfent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset fo be ufilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred fax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the assef is realised or the liability
is seffled, based on tax rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred fax assefs and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists fo set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(b]

[c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net

carrying amount of the financial assef; and

Dividend income

When the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been

established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insiruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-sefiled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-seffled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
fransactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit o the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-setiled fransactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are freated as vesting irespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are safisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Conta)

Share-based payments /Conr )

Where the ferms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial fo the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vesfed on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the dafe that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilufion in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under cerfain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Conta)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund’)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
relirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
parficipated in an opproved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sftatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earmed on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own funcfional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective funcfional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated af the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on seftlement or translation of monefary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of hisforical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured af fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Contc))

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assefs and liabilities of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rafes for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relafing fo that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated sfatement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and estimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of frade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on management's judgement. Significant judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability fo make payments, additional
provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percenfage of completion of consfruction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
end of the reporting period. These esfimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the tofal budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also esfimated by management. Because of the nature of the acfivity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is completed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income faxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in defermining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are fransactions and calculations for which the ulimate tox defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inifially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rafes ranging from 30% to 0% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business faxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not ve finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorifies.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such determination is made.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with internal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the properly development segment;

[c) the property investment and management segment;
(d)  the machinery leasing and frading segment; and
(e}  the E&M engineering segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before fax.

The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/(losses) from
the Group's financial instruments, gain on disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale, share of profits of associates and loss on
disposal of interests in associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, tax prepaid, fime deposits and other unallocated
head office and corporate assefs as these assefs are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instrumentfs, inferest-
bearing bank borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Geographical information
(@)  Revenue from external customers
B A HEAHE &e
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
:g_ﬁ —7 _E :§_¢ iz_ig :;_$ 77 _E :;_i 77 —E
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
HS000  HSO0  HKSO00  HEO00 HKSO00 K000 HESO0 AKSO00
2064944 2278170 459479 703593 979970 785516 3,504,393 3767279
The revenue information above is based on locations of the
customers.
(b)  Non-current assets
BA A HEAMHE &4
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
:g_i —7 —E :g_$ —7 —¢ :g_g —7 —E :g_i ZE_EE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FEr AT FEr FET F&r FET FEr &
HS000 SO0 HKS000 SO0 HKSO00 K000 KRS0 HSO000
414362 487122 310 0845 1313059 1322228 1727731 1819195

The non-current assets information above is based on locations of

the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$354,277,000 was derived from
sales by the foundation piling segment to Customer A during the year.
Revenue of approximately HK$640,230,000 was derived from sales
by the foundation piling segment to Customer B during the year ended

31 March 2013
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts certified
by architects or quantity surveyors; income derived from machinery
frading and property management; renfal income from property and
machinery leasing; and income from the sale of properties held for sale,
after eliminations of all significant infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:
—E-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000

Revenue:

Foundation piling 2,471,234 2,896,047
Property development 967,630 761,435
Property invesiment and management 13,181 24,723
Machinery leasing and frading 31,796 31,910
E&M engineering 20,552 53,164

3,504,393 3,767,279

Other income and gains:

Interest income 23,865 12,037
Insurance claims 1,484 313
Gain on disposal of investment properties - 478
Gain on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale* — 191,872
Subsidy income* * 1,295 1,183
Fair value gains on investments at fair value

through profit or loss, nef - 532
Foreign exchange gains, net 319 =
Management service income 1,694 1,862
Dividend income from listed investments 156 158
Others 4,348 7,409

33,161 215,844

On 7 December 2011, the Group entered info a formal sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party fo dispose of an
owneroccupied property being the whole floor of 11th Floor, Harbour
Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at a total cash
consideration of HK$315,000,000. On 31 May 2012, the disposal
was completed and a gain of HK$ 191,872,000 was resulted.

**  There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
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1 March 2014 —E-—ME=A=+—H
6. BERA 6. FINANCE COSTS
&8
GROUP

—E-mE —ZZT-—=F
2014 2013
FiET TIET
HK$000 HK$000

PITRERBEXZHE Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts:
—ARLEREHER — wholly repayable within five years 21,548 14,679
—ARAFEEHER — wholly repayable over five years 1,560 1,652
23,108 16,331

BB HTRA 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation
Minimum lease payments under
operating leases of land
and buildings
Rental of construction equipment
Auditors” remuneration
Employee benefit expense (including
directors' remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries
Equity-seffled share opfion expense
Pension scheme confributions

iz
Notes

—E-mE —ZE—=F
2014 2013
FBT FET
HK$000 HK$'000
75,858 81,411
13,529 12,311
52,883 35,919
2,978 2,587
439,598 339,745
= 107
11,489 10,073
451,087 349,925
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(credifing):(Cont'd]

i —®-mE —T-=%
Notes 2014 2013

FET THET

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Foreign exchange losses/(gains), nef* (319) 1,355

Impairment of trade receivables* 24 194 5,842

Write-down of inventories fo nef

realisable value* - 458

Impairment of other receivables* 25 1,217 2,000

Wirite-off of other receivables* — 1,788
Loss on disposal and write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment* 17,332 16,005

Gain on disposal of

investment properties* — (478)
Gain on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale* — (191,872
Fair value losses/(gains), net:

Investments at fair value

through profit or loss* 427 (532)
Derivative instruments — transaction
not qualifying as hedge* 128 1,350
Changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 (37,494) (30,702
Impairment/ (write-back of impairment]
of other assefs* 20 (110)

|mpairmenf of an amount due from

an associafe® 10 12
Rental income from operating

leases of machinery (13,785) (18,309
Rental income on investment

properiies less direct operating

expenses of HK$5,953,000

(2013: HK$ 11,269,000 (4,976) (11,893)
Dividend income from
listed investments* (156) (158)

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
and gains” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for loss
on disposal and write-off of items of property, plant and equipment of

HK$5,745,000 (2013: HK$2,103,000) which is included in "Cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Goveming the Listing of Securities [the “listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
£E
GROUP
—F-mFE —T=F
2014 2013
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees:
Executive directors - =
Independent non-executive directors 960 540
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind 71,761 50,603
Fquityseftled share optfion expense - 107
Pension scheme confributions 104 112
72,825 51,362

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2008, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further defails
of which are set out in nofe 34 fo the financial statements and the
report of the directors. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was defermined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 was included
in the above directors” remuneration disclosures.
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2014
Executive directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung?

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Viclor
Mr. David Chien?

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay'

Mr. lou Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung?

Independent non-execufive
directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Total
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31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the direcfors is as follows:

M 28

RENFE IREXfTZ Eihe

Solories,  BREXH TR

allowances  Equity-settled Pension
#&  ondbenefits  share option scheme act
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
TEx TEx T FEx FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 22,560 - 15 22,575
— 16,745 — 15 16,760
- 724 - 13 737
- 13,537 - 15 13,552
— 6,701 — 15 6,716
- 684 - 1 685
= 5,293 - 15 5,308
— 5517 — 15 5,532
- 71,761 = 104 71,865
240 - - - 240
240 = - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
960 - - - 960
960 71,761 - 104 72,825
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8. EEME(E) 8.
—T-=F 2013
BITEE Executive directors:
REERL M. Francis Cheung?
RHERE Mr. Fung Chiv Chak, Victor
BKE A2 Mr. David Chien?
FEE A Miss Jennifer Kwok?
BEBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung
iy Mr. Wong Kay'
BlEErs Mr. Lau Kin Fai
RAERLS Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung?
BUFHTES Independent non-executive

directors:

BEEEE Mr. Fan Chor Ho
BN Mr. Tse Man Bun
ETREL Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
£ kit Mr. Li Kit Chee
@ Total

‘ BERLEBTARARRNTES([H1T
BE|) AT =FRF—B4&

B o
2 BXBAERTIRTES R=F
—mE—B+=B4™ -

9 REESLENRAEREFIRITE
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

28
REWHE  ARELR2 RIKE
Salaries, BRES HEIS

dlowonces  Equitysefled Pension
#&  andbenefis  share opfion scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  confrioutions Tolal

TET THEL TET TET TEL
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

- 15,055 - 14 15,069
- 13,002 - 14 13,016
- 928 - 14 042
- 5,926 - 14 5,940
- 5,842 - 14 5,856
- 2,762 - 14 2,776
- 3,730 107 14 3,851
- 3,358 - 14 3,372
- 50,603 107 112 50,822
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
540 - - - 540
340 50,603 107 112 51,362

Mr. Wong Kay resigned as an executive director of the Company
["Execufive Director’) with effect from 1 May 2013.

M:r. David Chien resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13

January 2014.

Mr. Francis Cheung and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung resigned as
Executive Directors with effect from 1 April 2014.

Miss Jennifer Kwok has fendered her resignation to resign as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remunerafion during the year.
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AuGEeSHZES 9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
RAFERBREFE - AfluGaH & The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are
BYRARAESE - HME&FFHN L all directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out
BTFES in note 8 above.
Frigai 10. INCOME TAX
BARANGHRFANRBTBEL 2 A5 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
R RN 2165%(ZF—=4%: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%){E LB - H BTHE fth 3t [= B 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
gz B R ASBL SR 2 3 calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTERBEGE - the Group operates.
]
GROUP
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$000 HK$000
ENER - Current:
RERGM 2 IR - Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
e PRC:
BB Hong Kong 8,913 11,000
HAitbi @ Elsewhere 141,084 165,926
149,997 176,926
TEERRREE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE - PRC:
B Hong Kong (4,199 (60)
Hitoih [ Elsewhere (28) -
(4,227) 160)
ERERIE(MIEE32) Deferred tax (note 32) 94,924 18,265
ARERZ BB AR Total fax charge for the year 240,694 195,131
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10. PRSHL(4E) 10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
BERARUAR B REMBARMERR A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
Bt 2 EE R E 2 BRBADEN 2 sfatutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
HIERX ENERHRFE 2 HIERX subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge af the effective tax rate, is
ZHEMT as follows:
£E
GROUP
—F-mFE ZFT-=F
2014 2013
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BR7 A& A Profit before tax 519,658 557,235
VORI R E 2 BiE Tax at the sfatufory rates 45,322 76,134
THIRET R Provision for land appreciation fax 75,159 113,037
THIEER 2 RERE Tax effect of land appreciation tax 51,705 15,537
stBEFE 2 AETA Adjustments in respect of current
ML 2 BE fax of prior years (4,227) (60)
NSyl Profits affributable to associates (545) (1,056)
BERBHA Income not subject fo fax (3,281) (35,978)
AFHRHIEZAX Expenses not deductible for fax 30,219 23,109
HAEBETFEAENBRARIZ Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
A ATORM 2 profits of the Group's subsidiaries
EIL a2 in Mainland China 36,242 [6971)
DRBEFEZREER Tax losses utilised from prior years (157) (1,522)
ARERBIIEEE Tax losses not recognised 10,257 6,621
BRASEERREFE 2MIBERX  Tox charge at the Group's effective rate 240,694 195,131
11, RATEBRRREL G 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
ARBRMBERRBECHE —T—N The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
F=ZHA=1T—BEFEARAEBERAR Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of
HEMLEZEA R R EEER 17,005,000 HK$17,005,000 (2013: HK$8,790,000] which has been dealt with
ABIL(ZT—=%:8,790,000% 7T ) in the financial statements of the Company (nofe 35(b)).
(B&E 35(b))
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12. DIVIDENDS
—EF-NEN_E o=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Dividends paid during the year:
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2013 - HK5.0 cents (year ended
31 March 2012: HK4.0 cents)
per ordinary share 43,633 34,907
Inferim — Nil (2013: HK2.0 cents)
per ordinary share - 17,453
43,633 52,360
Proposed final dividend:
Final = HK10.0 cents (2013: HK5.0 cents)
per ordinary share 87,467 43,633

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject fo the approval of
the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$270,020,000 (2013: HK$348,479,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 873,778,232 (2013:
872,665,903 in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is based on the profit for the year atfributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$270,020,000 (2013:
HK$348,479,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic eamings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed fo have been
issued af no consideration on the deemed exercise of share options info

ordinary shares during that year of 197,309 (2013: 15,765).
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14. 9% - #BERRE

£

ZE-MEZA=+-B 31 March2014

R Cost:
£ At beginning of year
hE Aadfions
HE /s Disposals/witeoff
[E 3 % Exchange realignment

RZE-ME=RA=1—H At 3] March 2014

Zithe Accumulated depreciation
Konife and impaimen:
£ At beginning of year
KRERHE Depreciafion provided
B during the year
e/ His Disposcls/writeoft
[ A% Exchange relignment

RZZ-ME=RA=+—H A 3] March 2014

REAE Net carying amount:
RZZ-ME=A=1-H A 3] March 2014

RZE-=F=A=1-H A 3] March 2013

110 ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP
RER  HHR
B 58 il
HHRET  Equipment  Fuminre nE B NERE
Land and and and Motor Mofor  Leasehold &t
buildings  machinery fixtures ~ vehicles yacht  improvements Total
FiET FET FiET Fi&T FiET FiET FiET
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0 - HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
217,523 915,630 15345 23450 6,098 54026 1,232,072
- 81750 219 90 - 1,881 63,940
- 51,285 (2,679) (2,692) - (7428 [94,084)
| S = 2 = 16 24
217,524 926,100 12885 20850 6,098 18,495 1,201,952
14768 704716 12,160 17,963 6098 41995 797,700
7987 61,295 876 1715 = 3,985 75,858
- 2624 (2,205) (2,446) - (35085 (66,579
B ) 0] 14 - (14 53]
275 73975 10,828 17,228 6,098 10281 806,946
194772 186,341 2,057 3,622 - 8214 395,006
202,755 210914 3,185 5,487 = 12031 434,372
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14. 1% - WBERRB(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Coni'd)
£m(E) GROUP (Cont'd)
RER FRR
& 3 il
THEREF  Equipment Fumiture E i 3
land ond ond and Motor Molor  Leasehold ezt
buldings ~ machinery fstures vehicles yocht  mprovemens Totol

TET TR TET TET TET TET TET
HS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HEOD SO0 HKS000 HKSO00

“E=%=A=t-H 3] March 2013

R Cost:
) At beginning of year 215463 883,293 13,740 21,006 6,098 46,407 1,186,007
hE Addiions - 67977 2,669 2,600 - 11,445 84,691
BRERRREEL Transfer fiom properties
% (i 22) held for scle note 22) 2,032 = = = = = 2,032
tHE /i Disposals /writeoff - (35,779) (1,093] (243 - (4,301 (41418
ENAE Bxchange realignment 28 139 31 87 - 475 760
RZF-ZFZA=1-R Ar3] March 2013 207528 915,630 15,345 23,450 6,008 54026 1232072
Zithe Accumuloted depreciation
Fifd : and impaiment:
) At beginning of year 0853 658,023 12,208 15,802 6,098 40700 739,684
KERHE Depreciafion provided
il during the year 7913 65,825 919 2,331 = 4423 81411
e /HiH Disposals/writeoff - (19,243 (993 (243] - (3,983 (24,062)
[ 1 Exchange realignment 2 11 2 73 - 455 667
RZF-ZF=A=1-A Ar31 March 2013 14,768 704716 12,160 17,963 6,09 41995 797,700
BREHE - Nef carying amount:
RZF-ZF=A=+-A Ar31 March 2013 202755 210914 3,185 5487 - 12031 434372
RZE-ZF=R=1+-0 A 3] March 2012 208610 225270 1,532 9,204 - SA07 446,323
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14, - WEERREE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

AEBFAME - #as R REFREF
B/ 190,451,000 L(ZE—=4%:
198,229,000/ 7T ) < 13t REEFAR
BRI HHORE -

AEBETLHHRET RELEED
BERTRTESAKEREETRITE
B ZHEM(MESD) -

AREETRENEFRELEROH
MFE=7 - - THBHFENTH
HWRMIEE 36/l

AEERBEEANFERER 2RE
R N AR Rt T E ERE R
BRI -

The Group's land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$190,451,000 (2013:

HK$198,229,000) is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a
medium term lease.

Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
o the Group (note 31).

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 36]a) fo the financial statements.

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for
use under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses are as follows:

58
GROUP
—E-mFE —E-=F
2014 2013
FAET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

AR Cost 97,764 89,187
REtE Accumulated depreciation (66,496) (64,421)
ZEDREER Accumulated impairment losses (182) (182)
FREHE Net carrying amount 31,086 24,584
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

£
GROUP

—E-mF —T-=F

2014 2013

FET BT

HK$°000 HK$ 000

REZREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 487,878 455,590

N Additions 1,780 =
HE Disposals — (4,093)

EEABEHHEE 2MEMTE22)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 22) 6,135 =

NEER Fair value changes 37,494 30,702
bE AR Exchange realignment (311) 5,679

RER 2 BREE Carrying amount at end of year 532,976 487,878
REBZREDERATHEES & The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease

DRI terms in the following geographical locations:

—EZ-ME=A=1+—A8

R HIFE A
AL

31 March 2014

o
PRC
BB Hititth & st
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total

FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

Medium ferm leases 22,530 147,566 170,096
long term leases — 362,880 362,880

22,530 510,446 532,976
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15. REWFE(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

== e SR = 31 March 2013
H
PRC
BE HAth i st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
I EARR AT Medium term leases 22,530 = 22,530
RAFHAY long term leases = 465,348 465,348

AEBRENEBRUNEE L —BD
¥ - LRP RN ZREEDE
MRALR B A e MIREEDF - K
RRIEERESENEZME - FEL
ERERENED RMBEE  IA
XhfEE - AEERENFKEELE
REERYEMLEMBBETEEN LB
RAERARMEHER-F—NF=A
=+ —HEHEERS32,976,000/%
T e ARRIEFBEREREI G
{ER R EAREEYE ZINREE - Pl
ZIBEGEMIGHE - 28 - BN
REARFERRE - ARAIERE
EMRAN BT HREREREREETHE
ERAEERRRGEEREGERME

Twl e °

REMEDIRBLEENEETE=
77 BEBE ZE—SFRENMHR
RMEE 360 °

AEE-BREMEEER T —HERT
tERMARBRHRITEE 2 EM(K
$#31) 0
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22,530 465,348 487,878

The Group's investment properties consist of one commercial property
in Hong Kong, three commercial properties in Mainland China and
two residential properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and residential, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2014 based on
valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
a firm of independent professionally qualified property valuers at
HK$532,976,000. Each year, the Company's directors decide
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criferia include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Company's directors have discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice
a year when the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in nofe 36(a) to
the financial stafements.

One of the Group's investment properties was pledged fo a bank as
security for a banking facility granted to the Group (note 31).
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. REMHEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
RFEZREE Fair value hierarchy
TRINRAEEREMFE 2 AT EE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
TR Group's investment properties:

RIE-NFE=A=+—H
ERUT BB E R TE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014 using
EEME EATERE EXTUEE
WwE BARE WAHE
(E18) (%2F) (%£3F)
Quoted  Significant  Significant
prices in  observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs st

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

LUTIEE 2 &8 % Recurring fair value FHET FET FET FET
DFERE measurement for: HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
[EE3ES Commercial properties = = 42,522 42,522
EEME Residential properties — — 490,454 490,454

= = 532,976 532,976

RAFEER F1EBEF2E 2B E During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
ERATEAEEY  BE3IETEE between level 1 and level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
AEH -

BEREIBATESARB L ATE Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
B HEK the fair value hierarchy:

[GES/ES (EE2LYES

Commercial  Residential

properties properties

FET FBT

HK$000 HK$'000

R-F—=FA—HBZKEE Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 22,530 465,348
NE Additions — 1,780
EEARAHHEE 2MEMTE22)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 22) 6,135 —
NHEZ Fair value changes 14,058 23,436
B 5 3% Exchange realignment (201) (110)
RZZE—ME=A=+—B2KEE Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 42,522 490,454
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31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

15. REWX(E)

RFEERAERE (E)

AT AREDEGERBGETERE
EHABBEME

(BN SE SYES
Commercial property
in Hong Kong

AR Bt ¥
Commercial properties
in Mainland China

IR B Rt 2 (EEWE
Residential properties
in Mainland China

AEERENMEZ A FEDNERERL
& 2ELHMSTAELBYEL
A EEL AR BIRE Y R T
EflFhBeEE  NE BELEE
{ERRMERE - AVEFEEFEL X
BRASERATERSO T IBER
AR Z EARRRIIR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Contc)

Below is a summary of the valuation fechniques used and the key inputs
o the valuation of invesiment properties:

fHER*
Valuation
techniques

BEREBA
Direct comparison
approach

BERIEOA
Direct comparison
approach

BEREBA
Direct comparison
approach

BARAEBE
BABE
Significant
unobservable
inputs
ARMEARLE
Property-specific
adjusiment rafe
ARYERARLE
Property-specific
adjustment rafe
ARMEARLE
Property-specific
adjusiment rafe

38 (e
Fi3E)

Range (weighted
average)

20%ZE-1%(-29%)
20% to 1%
[-29%)

-40% ZE-3% (-14%)
40% to -3%
[-14%)

-5% % 2% (-4%)
-5% to 2%
(4%

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined using
the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of
comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,
floor level and quality of the Group's investment properties compared to
the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rafe will result in o
higher fair value.
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FOEE

AEERE
BRERAHEEZMEHZE22)
B 5 %

FRET

AR

FRRNEARE 7>

B Bl R

I EMRLD - KA

HBAAZRH
A

RIBRR 2 FE
—FRIMOBR
RBREED

# AEEBEEHREAELER

222,003,000 T(Z & — = F:
204,373,000 7T ) (0 5 5 B 85 18
Al ) 2 & T M B R Rl 2 R HE R
B REZSHEBARRAELEES

B
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16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

&8
GROUP

—EBE-NE —T-—=F

2014 2013

FET BT

HK$000 HK$000

Balance af beginning of year 1,031,826 1,247,755
Additions during the year 420,351 365,014
Transfer fo properties held for sale [note 22) (280,614) [596,385)
Exchange realignment 396 15,442
Balance at end of year 1,171,959 1,031,826
Current portion (382,669) (187,880)
Non-current portion 789,290 843,946

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NG
COMPANY

—E-UE —T-—=F

2014 2013

FET FHET

HK$000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 16,721 16,721
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,173,276 1,198,122
Impairment * (178,794) (161,287)
994,482 1,036,835

Amounts due to subsidiaries (144,932 (222,445)

Portion due within one year,

classified as current liabilities 144,932 222,445
1,011,203 1,053,556
#  An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from

subsidiaries with a gross carrying amount of HK$222,003,000 (2013:
HK$204,373,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because the
respective subsidiaries had been loss-making for some time.

FE R 20132014

[ ]
R B R AR A

117



TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

B?l % i’% l‘ﬁ #I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 March 2014 —E—ME=/A=+—8H

17. WEQ R (=) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

FR ARARZZMRBER T ZRHK
BRI E7,507,0008 (= —=
F:112,218,00087T) - HBRAZ
K%&WWEQﬂZ%Eﬁ%EﬁW&
2R SHARDEBZHBLRGETFEA
REKFHR—FREE - ﬁlﬁu-l_)\;l'zll\b
HEEZMBRARGEFIBRENAERS
HRE—FAREE ﬁﬁ%?%%
B E 2 E#EER

AARIER-_E—=F=H=+—H*%

During the year, the Company recognised an impairment of
HK$17,507,000 (2013: HK$112,218,000] for those amounts
due from subsidiaries. The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are
unsecured and interestfree. The balances with subsidiaries included in the
current liabilities are repayable on demand or within one year whereas
the balances with subsidiaries included in non-current assets are not
expected fo be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting

period and are considered as quasiequity loans fo those subsidiaries.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had undertaken not fo demand

HPEXMBRARRAMETREERA repayment of the amount due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation
AMEE X 580,000,000/ 7T » A Llimited, of HK$80,000,000 to maintain the required minimum working
BEDNERATERERECLE capital as stipulated by government authorities. The undertaking was
B® o RAHCRRFERR - released during the year.
TEMBRARZFEWT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AL, ERTRAR KNEEG
amMREELE  ERRARAEE ZREBDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
#18 registration paid registered/ atiributable to IEER
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
—F-mEF ZT-=F
2014 2013
RANE(BR)ERAR (ML) & EER100%T 60 100 REFER
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Invesiment holding
Limited (note 6/
RAMEIRERAR (W2 3K6) BF L@k S51,000,00087T 60 100 S EATHE
Tysan Foundation limited fnofes 2, 3 and 6/ Hong Kong Ordinary Foundation piling
HK$51,000,000
JETERR 3,000,00078 7T
Deferred
HK$3,000,000
RARECRP)BRAR(WF2K6) BF L@k 25,0002 60 100 SESTHE
Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary Foundation piling
[nofes 2 and 6) MOP25,000
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17. BB (E)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (&)

B Ay
AR EE R
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and business
RABWBERRAR(MH2  3R06) BA
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong
fnofes 2, 3 and &)
RAWETR(BE)BERAT BE
(Bat2R6) Hong Kong
Tysan Coniractors (Hong Kong| Limited
[nofes 2 and &)
RAMET HIRERRLA 353
(BT 2K6) Hong Kong
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical limited
fnotes 1, 2 and 6/
FERBIRERARHEZ2) BE
Proficiency Equipment Limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong
FETREERRARAM2Z2) BA
Proficiency Engineering Limited (nofe 2/ Hong Kong
RIBERDR(HE2) BE
lion Bright Limited nofe 2/ Hong Kong
ERBRRARMZE2R8) 2P
Mac Proficiency Limited Macau

(notes 2 and 8)

ERTRAR
AMBRA/ RAEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully

paid registered/
share capital

L% 10,00087T
Ordinary

HK$10,000

B 200,000 87T
Deferred
HK$200,000

LEBAT 27T
Ordinary HK$2

TR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

AR 6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

LRk 2BT
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

EiEk 25,0002
Ordinary
MOP25,000

R B R AR A

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

ENG
ZBRERDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to TEEH
the Company Principal activities
—B-NF ZF-=F
2014 2013
60 100 HHRE
Machinery hiring
60 100 HEEENR
R RS
Project management
and provision of
consultancy services
60 100 EHE
Site investigation
100 100 BERESKER
Machinery hiring
and frading
100 100 REIERRBER
BHEE
Provision of
engineering services
and machinery hiring
100 100 HEEERESR
Machinery
hiring and trading
100 - R T IR
REMAEE
Provision of

engineering services
and machinery hiring

FE R 20132014
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17, HB A SR (E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

TEMBLARZFHEWT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

120

T, ERTRER ENNG) 3
afREnd  ERRE/REAEE ZBREBDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
#1 registration paid registered/ attributable to TEXH
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
—B-MF ZF-=F
2014 2013
RACBBRAR(H73) BF L@k 16,7208507%T 100 100 TRER
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 3/ Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$16,720,850 management
BRI 27T
Deferred HK$2
it 2l NG BE BRIk 2B 100 100 tEmE
Sun Sparkle limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Corporate financing
SRARARF BE ERR AT 100 100 TxmE
Great Unison limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ 1 Corporate financing
RAREERARAF([RAREER]) BE LRk 2 BT 100 100 REER
Tysan Investment Limited (“TIL') Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment holding
RANEERREARAF & @R 100 100 REFER
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment holding
& Investment Limited
RARERRAR([RARE]) BE BRIk 2B 100 100 RERK
Tysan Consfruction Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding
Limited ["TCCL"|
hRREBRRR(AE2) & @R 100 100 NERE
Faithmark Investments limited /nofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property invesiment
Tremend Yield Limited (#1752 2) & L@k 208 100 100 ESd
[note 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 Property investment
=HREBRAR(H2) BE ERR2BT 100 100 NERRE
Trions Investment Limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property investment
EEREBRRA(HZ2) BE LRk 2B 100 100 REME
Sure Faith Investment limited (nofe 2] Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property holding
BERUERRRA(HiZ2) BE LRk 2B 100 100 REERKR
Duncan Propetties Limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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17. MIEBARRER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

B Ay ERTRAR ENG
afREXnd  ERRE/REAEE ZREBDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
#% registration paid registered/ attributable to TEXK
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
ZE-mF —T-=F
2014 2013
Dragonhill limited (752 2) BB L@R2ET 100 100 REER
fnote 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment holding
MIRRERRAR(HE2) BE LRk 2B 100 100 HRERKRRERME
Great Regent Invesiments Limited (nofe 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 HE RE R
Investment holding
and provision of
sales and
marketing services
RAFMERR(R2)BERAF E/ R 15,500,000 %7 100 90 VESS
(Hit2-4k7) PRC/ US$15,500,000 Property
Tysan Property Development (Tianjin] Mainland China development
Company limited fnofes 2, 4 and 7]

Cotfontree Pacific Limited RBRUES LEmk BT 100 100 REBER
((EBRR Ordinary HK$1 Invesiment holding

#8l)

British Virgin

Islands ("BVI")
Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited (72 2) BRE ERk0.1 8T 100 100 REZR
(note 2) Bermuda Ordinary HK$0.1 Invesiment holding
REBRRRI(ME2) &  EB@KR10000ET 97 97 RERK
Sparkle Key limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary Invesiment holding

HK$10,000

RAGWE(ER)ERARA(NF2L4) FEB/FEAM  58,300,000%7% 97 o7 MERRE
Tysan Land (Shenyang) Limited PRC/ US$58,300,000 Property
(notes 2 and 4) Mainland China development
RAEME(LB)BERRR(MH2RS) B/ HERNH 20,500,000% 7T 100 100 NERER
Tysan Land (Shanghai] Limited PRC/ US$20,500,000 Property
[notes 2 and 5) Mainland China development

FE R 20132014
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17. MBARER(E)

TEMBLARZFHEWT : (8)

=4

Name

RATRBEERAR(H3E2)
Tysan Engineering Company
Limited (note 2)

FATR(BA)BRAR(HE2)
Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
Company limited (nofe 2)

ERBRERAR M 2)

China Garden Infernational Limited (nofe 2)

Allbright Investment Limited (4752 2)
[note 2)

lronwood Pacific Limited (4732 2)
[note 2)

Federated Resources Limited (472 2)
[note 2)

Beneficial Enterprises Limited (2% 2)
[note 2)

AR EBRAR(HZ2)
Red Shine Investment Limited /nofe 2)

BRRERRAR (Mt 2)

Hiat Investment Limited /nofe 2)

BEBRAR(MF2R7)
Great Prosper limited fnofes 2 and /)

=REABER AR (MZ2)
Carriway Limited fnofe 2/

BRITARRAR(HHE2)
Fund House Limited fnofe 2)

122 ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,

Ak E xR

Place of

incorporation/

registration
and business

B
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

A5
Hong Kong

RERIES
BVI

RERZHS
BV

RERZHS
BV

RBRKES
BVI

Bt

Hong Kong

A5
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong

EBRITRAR

EmRA RAHEE

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

&R 10,0007
Ordinary
HK$10,000

L8k 20,600,0008 7T

Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

TR 10078 T
Ordinary HK$100
LB 100ETT
Ordinary US$100
LEM 100ET
Ordinary US$100
TER100%ET
Ordinary US$100
LEAR100ET
Ordinary US$100
LR 2B
Ordinary HK$2
L@ 28T
Ordinary HK$2
LEA 10078
Ordinary HK$100
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

ENNG) 3
ZBERDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
—E-ME —T-=F
2014 2013
70 70
70 70
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 )
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

BEEK

Investment holding

REERR
HMARS

Provision of
electrical and
mechanical services

REEK

Invesiment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERK
Investment holding
RERK
Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REER
Invesiment holding
MERE
Property investment

REER

Investment holding

KA

Investment holding

KA

Investment holding



B8 A Rl (42

TEMBARZFHEWT : (&)

=t

Name

EEMEER( LB BB

(Biat2 R 4)

Duncan Property Management
(Shanghai) Company Limited

[notes 2 and 4)

HEERRREHERELEBR AR

(Wiat2 R4)

Shanghai China Garden Infernational
Real Estate Development &
Management Company limited

(notes 2 and 4)

LEREBSFUHERELEARAR

(Hiz2%4)

Shanghai Changning Duncan Property
Development Company Limited

(notes 2 and 4)

LEEERHESARRAR

(Hiz2 % 5)

Shanghai Duncan Property Consuliing
Company Limited fnofes 2 and 5]

[ ]
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

B e
kg R
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

HE/FER
PRC/
Mainland China

HE /B R
PRC/
Mainland China

B/ ER
PRC/
Mainland China

R/ R ER
PRC/
Mainland China

ERITRAR

EmRA/ RAHE

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

500,000 7T
US$500,000

5,000,000% 7T
US$5,000,000

10,000,000 7T
US$10,000,000

100,000 7T
US$100,000

KATEE
ZBRERDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to TEEH
the Company Principal activities
“ZT-MEF —T-=F
2014 2013
100 100 nEER
Property
management
100 100 NRRE
Property
investment
100 100 NEER
Property
development
100 100 REDFAARS
Provision of
property

consultancy services
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1. ZARBHBERFZLNIEBRAF
BXAERSMEL HIRERAR
AT FENA -+ =HilEK -

2. EBMBARRA -

3. EEROHERERRE(NEBIR
A IR S Z AMEB10EET
ZEARBEERBFSEZBXIK
B2 EEIFRFRERIN) - TRERE
RERAE LRE - MARNBRKE
BUBMEARE 2 EMBHEZER
D2 EBBARI - EZ AR 2 ER
BB ALARBREE S EE
BRED KL 10,0008 7T)

4. ZEFERTREFEZEEMAING
BELK -

5. ZEERDREFBEZEZEMASI
RERE-

6. RNF-MF-A+tR FEEH
ENRAWE(FR)BRA R LEHK
BRIz A0% ke - BRAHEFHRL
E— S EHNMISIRKMEE 41 (b)

7. R-E-MFE-A+OHA- A%E
YEREBRER AR RENMBARL
10.2% EFR B - BRAESEHE
—SRHEBN P BREMFL 40 -

ERN_Z—=FN\A=TH=EM
iV

ERMIIZARRRINBARIRES RS
HARBZAEEREREATENE
RAEBAHDBEFEZMBAF -
EXRA - AEMMEARE5IBA

BRI E AR 2 AREHE
RAZEHEWT -
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:

1. lis name was changed from Tysan Geotechnical Limited to Tysan
Foundation Geotechnical Limited effective on 23 April 2014.

2. Held through subsidiaries.

3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed
non-cumulative dividend af the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$1 billion], no rights to vote at general meefings,
no rights fo receive any surplus on a retum of capital on @ winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinory

share).

4. These entifies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

5. These entifies are registered as Sinoforeign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

6. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of its 40% equity inferests in
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited and its subsidiaries. Further details
of the disposal are set out in note 41(b] to the financial statements.

7. On 14 January 2014, the Group acquired 10.2% effective equity
interest in Great Prosper Limited and ifs subsidiary. Further defails of the
acquisiion are sef out in note 40 fo the financial statements.

8. This entity was incorporated on 30 August 2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a subsfantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
defails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below.
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THEBRERRAME(FE)FRAF

FE2EMBAR(RREAIFAME
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TRIITRAWE(FE)ERHE-T

—OE=A=1T—RIFELHMEEH
MR - IRESRETARBEER

R B R AR A

% it % B i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

The information set out below represents the non-controlling interests in

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong| Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

(collectively, “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong| Group”).

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests

Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interests

Lloan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder (nofe|

Accumulated balances of non-controlling inferests
at the reporting date

—E-mF
2014

40%
FET
HK$'000
3,415

32,000

208,502

Nofe: The balance is unsecured, interestfree and not repayable within one year

from the end of the reporting periocl.

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information

of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group for the year ended 31

March 2014. The amounts disclosed are before any intercompany

8z

eliminations:
Wz Revenue
B Total expenses
FEHN Profit for the year
FRZEKREAR Total comprehensive income for the year
MENEE Current assets
FERBEE Non-current assefs
mEaE Current liabilities
FERBAE Non-current liabilities

—E—-F
2014
FET
HK$000

2,471,234
(2,342,137)
129,097
129,097

1,559,760
159,653
(1,178,074)
(100,083)
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17. MBARER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
TRIFFAHE(FE)EBHE_T The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
—ME=A=t—RILFEZHBEEH of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group for the year ended 31
BE - rRBEEEETAREEEA March 2014. The amounts disclosed are before any intercompany
2% (8) eliminations: (continued)

—ZF-NF
2014
FET
HK$000
RELEEB RENEFHE Net cash flows from operating acfivities 463,000
ARRERB R EREFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (141,228
ARRERB R REFE Net cash flows used in financing acfivities (73,297)
Re kR EEYEINFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 248,475
HRZEME(ER)EB AR = No comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
Z-=F=-A=+—Bz2EWEBR disclosed as Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group was a wholly-
A HUERERE_T—=F=A owned subsidiary of the Company as at 31 March 2013.
=t—RUEFEZHEREHR -
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BENTEERRE —EHE D

A ZEX

(a)

[EIEEESE

RN A

kN =
BEARZRARRBERRIZE
FEREEHR 2EHBERTEN
HiRR c RANEE - REBZE QA
ZEFREERBEBENTRD
2EEE(RHEE) -

b) WZE—Z=F=A=+—H":f

ARKEGERBBEZ KA
B & N Al 2 B 324,560,000 %
%?ﬁﬁﬁ 2R ABARBZ

=H£=-A=1—RiE1218A
15@ RAEE - ZHE DT
HINBEAT7,000,0008 T * &

P E R AR A 31,560,000
T BERECEE - FEENH
BRARME 40 -

o AEELEEEL-MBELT
B SRR AR IR R 5 04
#E -
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1 March 2014 ZZ—ME&=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

ASSOCIATE

rEE

GROUP
—F-mE —F=F
(a) 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Share of net assets — 37,595
Amounts due from associates 359 2,464
Loans to associates — 8,150
359 48,209
less: Impairment (359) [ 349)
— 47 860

(b]

(c]

The amounts due from associates and loans to associates are
unsecured, inferestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment.
During the year, the loans to associates were fully setfled during
the disposal of associates as mentioned in note ().

As at 31 March 2013, the loan from an associate included
in the Group's non-current liabilities of HK$24,560,000 was
unsecured, inferesHree and would not be repayable within 12
months from 31 March 2013. During the year, a further advance
of HK$7,000,000 was received from the associate and resulting
in a total loan balance of HK$31,560,000. The loan was
setiled as detailed in note 40 to the financial statements.

The Group's trade receivable balances with an associate in the

prior year were disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

FE R 20132014
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180 B 0 RS TR R S — P

BER(E)

Az

(d)

“F-mFE=f=1-8

TEBENRZFENAT

=4

Name

NEREBRRLF

Turbo Dragon Invesiment
Limited

RABETRAERAA
([REEETRE])
(Bt 1)

Tysan Building Consfruction
Company limited
(“TBC") fnote 1)

WA EECRP)
BRARMEE])

Mac Tysan Construction
(Macau) Limited fnote 7)

ZATRREBRAF
(it 1)

Tysan Project Management
limited (note 1)

RAEHBERNAT
(I%AE5])(Wz2)

Tysan Trading Company
limited (“TTCL"} fnote 2)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

18.

(d

e 81T

B FEREE
Particulars

and nominal valve
of issued

shares held

TRREE
17T
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1
ERRmEE
1787
Ordinary share
of HK$1

BREBREE
1 BT
Ordinary share
of MOP1 each

ERRmEE
177
Ordinary share
of HK$1

LRRmEE
187
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

AL
REXBE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

&g
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

RF

Macau

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

AEEES
PrEEREEE Dt
Percentage of
ownership interest

attributable
fo the Group
“E-NF —T-=F

2014 2013

50 50

- 49

— 49

— 49

- 40

Principal
activities

KRB

Investment holding

REBFR
BETR
Provision of
building and

construction works

REEEFTR
BETR
Provision of
building and

construction works
REETR
BETR
Provision of
building and

construction works

—KES
General frading
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31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of ifs entire equity
interest in these entities. Further defails of the disposal are sef out
in note (e)(i) below.

2. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in this entity. Further defails of the disposal are set out in
note (el(ii) below.

The above fable lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, affected the Group's share of profits
of the associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's
interests in associates. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

—E-mE —T-=F

2014 2013

FET TIET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Share of the associates’ profit for the year 3,301 6,402

Share of the associates’ tofal

comprehensive income 3,541 6,512
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's

interests in associates — 47,860

FE R 20132014
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18. HENREAERKRE —BHE A
RIZER(E)
e] HEBERA

(i

RZE—=FN\A+<H
(CABMA=Z—=F+—
AZTZBzHABES
i) ARBIZEEWEBR
ARARERENELE
(IBxEDFIL—0MEE
W Bt RAEER
BEMRE 17,150,000 7T
(Er9,800,000/8 LA H
& - 7,350,000 T
RBERRER)RISEE
HEERNFAREETREY
19%BRIERFARETE
RRARE/EERRE
7,350,000 (% &

BETIRHE] ZREAR
ETRHERZTE—NF
—AtEA%R -

TRABREIBREETK

% AEBUYEEERRA
BETERENBARZ
Tz  TERETR
& 2 B 182,184,000
B MHERERE
9,800,000/ t & A & &

RHERHMREREET
12 HEH#11,984,0005%

TZER REREERE
ﬁT’ﬁ‘%WﬁE%’w

ERRARETIRLE

X 1% - /,%%iﬁﬁ&%uz;%
ARETERKAEIEEL
—FHE LR
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18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(e)

Disposals of associates

fi

On 16 August 2013 [as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013), TCCL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Fung Chiu
Chak, Vicior (“Mr. Fung"), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which, TCCL disposed of its 49%
equity interest in TBC, and the interestfree shareholder’s
loan of HK$7,350,000 owing by TBC to TCCL, at
a cash consideration of HK$17,150,000 (of which
HK$9,800,000 is for the disposal of the equity inferest
and HK$7,350,000 is for setlement of the shareholder’s
loan] to Mr. Fung (“Tysan Building Construction Disposal”).
The Tysan Building Construction Disposal was completed
on 17 January 2014

Upon completion of the Tysan Building Construction
Disposal, the Group does not have any interest in TBC and
its subsidiaries. The loss on the Tysan Building Consruction
Disposal of HK$2,184,000, representing the difference
between the equity interest disposal consideration of
HK$9,800,000 and the Group's inferests in TBC as at the
date of disposal of approximately HK$ 11,984,000, was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year.

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Building
Construction Disposal, TBC, which is controlled by Mr.
Fung, became a related company of the Group.
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le) HEBERRE
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RZZE—=FN\A+7<H
(CEHRAE-_T—=F+—
A-+-Bz@xHHE
i) ARRZE2EHEBAR
ARAREZRRAISHE
NMNAFTL—HBEE R E
Bt RAREEERER
& R B 4,400,000/ Jt(E
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HEERKRE S 240%
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18.

31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

le]  Disposals of associates (Cont'd)

i

On 16 August 2013 [as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013), TIL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Miss Jennifer Kwok,
entered info a sale and purchase agreement pursuant fo
which, TIL disposed of its 40% equity inferest in TTCL and
the inferestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$800,000 owing
by TTCL to TIL, at a cash consideration of HK$4,400,000
of which HK$3,600,000 is for the disposal of the equity
interests and HK$800,000 is for the settlement of the
shareholder’s loan) to Miss Jennifer Kwok (“Tysan Trading
Disposal’). The Tysan Trading Disposal was completed on
17 January 2014,

Upon completion of the Tysan Trading Disposal, the Group
does not have any interest in TTCL and its subsidiaries. The
loss on the Tysan Trading Disposal of HK$9,151,000,
representing the difference between the disposal
consideration of HK$3,600,000 for the equity interest
and the Group's inferests in TTCL as af the date of disposal
of approximately HK$ 13,687,000, net of the release
of related exchange fluctuation reserve upon disposal
of approximately HK$936,000, was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Trading
Disposal, TTCL, which is confrolled by Miss Jennifer Kwok,
became a related company of the Group.

Further details of the Tysan Building Construction Disposal and

Tysan Trading Disposal are sef out in the Company's circular
dated 25 November 2013.

FE R 20132014
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19, AEHERE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

£
GROUP

—E-mE —ZET-—=F

2014 2013

FET TET

HK$000 HK$ 000

REMBRAKRE - AR Unlisted equity investment, at cost 1,250 -
R_E-—NME=RA=+—H HE As at 31 March 2014, unlisted equity investment with a carrying

1,250,000 B (ZF—=% : E)ZRK
ERBAREERRARRETIE - AR
AEQTEMG ZEBEERA - EFRR

amount of HK$ 1,250,000 (2013: Nil] was stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot

HATHEREEASEAE - AEEEEN be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the

AHRELE -

20. RAVESABREZRE

REE LM ZBRIRE - mAFE

R BPZ I ETRARS B
AT

PR —T-—=F=A=+—HZRKRE
EIIRRKEEERE YRFAHER

FEm

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

near future.

20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
=8
GROUP
—F-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
FET  TET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,

at fair value — 3,838

Unlisted investment funds in Mainland China,
at fair value - 268,535
- 272,373

The above invesiments af 31 March 2013 were classified as held for
frading and were disposed of or redeemed during the year.
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21. 78 21. INVENTORIES
&8
GROUP
“E-NEFE —T—=fF
2014 2013
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Rt Raw materials 1,818 5,570
TR EM Spare parts and others 11,791 9,594
13,609 15,164
22. SEHEE Y 22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
&8
GROUP
—E-mFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET BT
HK$000 HK$ 000
F49) At beginning of year 720,600 466,250
HEREME  #ERFE(MTE14)  Transfer to property, plant and
equipment (nofe 14) — (2,032)
BREREMEMES) Transfer fo investment properties (note 15) (6,135) =
BRAERTYEM16) Transfer from properties under
development [nofe 16) 280,614 596,385
FALE Y Properties sold during the year (396,173)  (341,01¢)
B 5 S Exchange realignment 5734 1,013
F4R At end of year 604,640 720,600
REBEGMHEE Y WEMNDR A The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China
B EMBRNRES and are held under long term leases.
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23. BEEW

24.

RPBEHAHNIRZRK
REFPEBENTIIZZFE

FTESE 2 & AN A INBERE TR
HEE MR AR B RIS
B B FEIGE F R X

FELIL & 5 AR X

AEBRESMITRBESTEER
R-BTEHEPZTH—REEH
R30BA(RKERBERERIN) - AL
BEBELE IR - BER XAt
BAGRE 2 W E SRR ERE R
FAR  BMECERBRBRET 2B
o AEBY B LSBT RA TR
REARBEMEE - RREZRTGAH

23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Amounts due from customers for contract works
Amounts due to customers for contract works

Confract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses to date
less: Progress billings received and receivable

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relafe to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over ifs trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-inferest-

R e bearing.
FEWE 5 HRFX Trade receivables
RE Impairment

ﬁﬂﬁlf’f%ﬁﬁ EPPJ%JEH&Z R REAE 2 A
6,405,000 B L(ZE—=%F:
FEJHABTH%EAQTO 8OOO/’§75) HE&
HIEE 1'%?%51%%21&‘$@I£%J5E’11§
?”*H% °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Included in the trade receivables is an amount due from a
related company of HK$6,405,000 (2013: a then associate of
HK$618,000), which is repayable on similar credit terms to

&8

GROUP
—E-mF —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

107,127 99,643
(739.788) (528,161

(632,661) (428,51

9,641,367 7,572,655
(10,274,028) (8,001,173

(632,661) (428,51

&8

GROUP
—E-mF —T-=F
2014 2013
FET FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

777,991 743,938
(194) (8,876)

777,797 735,062

offered fo the major cusfomers of the Group.

]

8)

]

8]

those
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

NEZRHMREFENE  BERES An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:
£
GROUP
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FET FAT

FEWE B -
Q0RNA
91HZ180H
181 HZ360H
360 R £

FYRRES

KB ZRFRERB 2 ZEIT

F1

B R RE R (5 7)
WisH AN AT B 2 SRR
B 5 %

R

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Trade receivables:

Within 90 days 463,772 456,725
91 to 180 days 1,231 751
181 to 360 days 1,789 14,105
Over 360 days 771 194

467,563 471,775
Retention receivables 310,234 263,287

777,797 735,062

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

]

GROUP
“E-NFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
At beginning of year 8,876 2,922
Impairment losses recognised (nofe 7) 194 5,842
Amount written off as uncollectible (9,009 =
Exchange realignment 133 112
At end of year 194 8,876

FE R 20132014
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24, BWRE SRR (#)

Af AL EIKRE SRR 2R E &
# /1940007 (= & — = F:
8,876,000 7T ) = 3L {8 Bl B Y & 5 /&
EE B Al R E AR (E /5 194,00078
TT(ZZE—=%:8,876,000/&7T) - f&
FI| B BB FE MR B 55 R ok B B 1 A 765 R
ZEFAM  AHRUZEEF BN
TREZERIE -

BRI FRIES T TR a2 ERE S
BRI AT -

BT E R (E
BB 1 BZE9OH
2891 BE270R
BiBdEE 2708

SRR A FRAGURER K E W
BIBBNELNTRAEFAR -8
HE Y EIRE < ERGURE A8 EAL
EEERHRHLBNBLRFER -
KEBERLER  ARREFRA AR
FEEEVBREAZH ALFNHE A
2ERE - BB RZSEFEDL
WIERE
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$194,000 (2013: HK$8,876,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$194,000 (2013: HK$8,876,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

&=

GROUP
—E2-mF —T—=F
2014 2013
FET THT
HK$000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 720,388 701,419
1 to 90 days past due 53,618 18,598
91 to 270 days past due 2,853 14,851
More than 270 days past due 938 194
777,797 735,062

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.
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25. FANFIE - AT REMERFIE 25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

WM - e
BB AR 2R &

BNFEK &

H it R IR
RfE

B RS

=H 27
GROUP COMPANY
“g-mg -T-=F -®-ME -F-=4
2014 2013 2014 2013

FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

Deposits for acquisition of
items of property, plant

and equipments 4,905 3,909 - =
Prepayments and deposits 45,854 31,631 177 3,039
Other receivables 35,068 20,601 3,323 =
Impairment (3,226) (2,000) - =
82,601 54,141 3,500 3,039

less: Prepayments, deposits and

FRBEEZ other receivables
FENHIE - F]e classified as
R EoAth FE YR IE non-current assets (7,859) (3,909) - —
74,742 50,232 3,500 3,039
Hith e SR RER E BT The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as
follows:
&5
GROUP
—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
F14 At beginning of year 2,000 -
ERAREEEAZES) Impairment losses recognised fnofe /) 1,217 2,000
P& KR Exchange realignment 9 —
FE At end of year 3,226 2,000
BB R EUREZ 3,220,000 (=& Except for other receivables of HK$3,226,000 (2013:
— =4 : 2,000,000 7T ) E # FE Y % HK$2,000,000) which was fully impaired, none of the above assets
BN -t BEWERBSFE - ma is either past due or impaired and the financial assefs included in the
AL 84 7 £ RV B BT RN R 4 above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
fosk o EATIAE T - history of default.

FE R 20132014
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0]

27.

TESMT A

et
BRAKRBARY H5

nBREED

ARBERINZHEMNE R WEEHE
FIZERR o JEERITAE TR R F3E
B8 B 4,0920008T(ZF—=
% : 2,831,000 7T) It AFRZ 1R
B5RA - ZEeRMIAZEEERAR
FERE - LRTAESRIAMIR S
DHREERFATHIBENEL S
BT

BEeRRTEF EHERRE
REIRE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

&8

GROUP
—E-mE —ZZT-—=F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
Interest rafe swaps 4,113 8,205
Portion classified as a non-current liability — (8,205]
Current liabilities portion 4,113 -

27.

The Group has entered into various interest rafe swaps to manage
its interest rate exposures. Changes in the fair value, nef, of non-
hedging derivatives amounting to gain of HK$4,092,000 (2013:
HK$2,831,000) were credited o the statement of profit or loss during
the year. The carrying amounts of those financial instruments are the
same as their fair values. The above fransactions involving derivative
financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial insfitutions
with no recent history of default.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

&5
GROUP
Hiat —E-mE —E—=F
Notes 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
EHER - Time deposits:
—HibEBER — other time deposits a) 551,441 429,662
— BT — structured deposits (b) 554,778 99,920
TG EE Total ime deposits (c) 1,106,219 529,582
Be RIBITHET Cash and bank balances a) 441,688 488,870
XBEHRE Restricted cash (d] 3,241 60,207
et Total 1,551,148 1,078,659

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

5=
GROUP
—F-mE —F=F
2014 2013
FE FET

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Denominated in:

BT Japanese yen (“YEN') 6 7
£ United States dollar ("USD") 664 77,683
BT Euro ("EUR”) 902 17,042
BT Macao patacas (‘MOP’) 6,093 43,453
AR Renminbi {"RMB”| 934,708 362,188
BT HK$ 608,775 578,286

ARBAAERABAREMER A
i RER B A SMNEE IR IRDI K A
[ EERNEEERRE  AREREE
BBRREETINEEB ZRIT BA
RERBREMER -

it -

(o) ROFEFREABOEFINERFELZ
FEHMEEDME - EHREFREE
MRZEFHR - atXEXNEAT

CBRFEAEE KRS F KM

» W HRA B 2 B HR T R R R ER A

B RITEGERA & FALHY E2

HBRZIEBEEZRIT -

b) HBRUEEFASEEETEHHERE
HMER - REEKATE- SR
FRAERERNRTEETT R EX
HRRARTRAEXFEZEB K
g AREXERAEBEFIARER
FREDE -

ST

1,551,148 1,078,659

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Notes:

(@)  Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days
and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn inferest at the respective time deposit rafes. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

(b)  The structured deposits are fime deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are sfated at amortised cost. The interest rates on the structured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in currency exchange rate between USD
and HK$ or changes in the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").
The Group uses sfructured deposits primarily to enhance the return on
investment.
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27. RERBITHET  EHRERRE 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

FREIRE (&)
Wit : (&)

[ HBREERBRERRER=(EAKE
B2 E BTE 3K 137,485,000 (=
T—=%F &)

d REFEABESR RNEERTE
FREBEBRTMEZC KA
£3,241,0008 (= & — = F:
60,207,000/&7T) + &R AR &R

ke
28. BNESRAKEFIEA 28.

NERHAE  BENESRFARESH

R BRI AT -

ERE SN Trade payables:
Q0HMA Within 90 days
Q1EZ180H 91 to 180 days
180RME Over 180 days

ERRES Retention payables

FEET IR Accruals

BNEZEFO/EE - —RERXHR
AtHE-
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RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Noftes: [Contd]

() Included in the balance are time deposits of HK$ 137,485,000 (2013:
Nil] of which the original maturity is more than three months when
acquired.

(d)  Pursuant fo relevant regulations in the PRC, deposits of HK$3,241,000
[2013: HK$60,207,000) received from the pre-sale of properties under
development under designated bank accounts can only be used for the
consfruction of the relevant properties.

TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

%H 27

GROUP COMPANY
—g-mE -T-=F —¥-WF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

FET TET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

147,805 217,083 254 897
438 224 = —
1,995 4,190 = -
150,238 221,497 254 897
152,494 79,759 = —
331,343 337,211 1,338 3,618
634,075 638,46/ 1,592 4,515

The frade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally seftled on
90-day terms.
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((FEDHREHERFAME(EE)E
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32 T e (SR ik ) R R K
B2 #3514 6,000,000 ° 25—
AEBSEE2EREZ AR -BEZT
—=F=ZA=+—HLFE  EXKE%
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BEEMN - BEEREFADHEGY
RERE  EEMEHBEERNEARRZ
T—=F+—A-t+ABBHZBRE
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—=F+_AThBRBEZRE - RE
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EREFERZ  MAARERERE
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EWET &
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EREFERTOEBAEA ORI HH
ENEHERNRBTP R °
AEERYENHEZRAFESYE -
AREEFIIARH  BHNRERE
ANE  BEPARAREX NS - &
SEFBCZEERIR/RE °

29.

30.

R B R AR A

% it % B i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —E—ME=A=+—H

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE

Other payables are non-inferestbearing and have an average ferm of
one month.

As at 31 March 2013, included in other payables, deposits received
and receipts in advance of the Group and the Company was a
deposit in the sum of HK$6,000,000 received from Fortunate Pool
limited (“Fortunate Pool”), under a conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 12 November 2012 and a supplement agreement
dated 21 December 2012 (collectively, the “Agreement’) between
the Company and Fortunate Pool in relation to a proposed disposal
of 40% equity inferest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited (the
"Proposed Disposal’). Fortunate Pool is a company wholly owned by
M:r. Fung. During the year ended 31 March 2013, legal proceedings
HCMP 2892 of 2012, HCMP 207 of 2013 and HCMP 841 of
2013 relating fo the Proposed Disposal [collectively, the “Chien legal
Proceedings’] were instituted by Mr. David Chien in the High Court of
Hong Kong (“High Court"). Pursuant to an order by consent dated 19
December 2013 granted by the High Court, the injunction granted by
the High Court in respect of legal proceedings HCMP 2892 of 2012
and HCMP 207 of 2013 had accordingly ceased to have effect on
such terms as set out in the sefflement agreement and the Chien legal
Proceedings were unconditionally withdrawn by consent, which had
been disclosed in a circular of the Company issued on 25 November
2013. For further information, please refer to an announcement
published by the Company on 19 December 2013. By a lefter dafed
1 July 2013, Fortunate Pool elected to rescind the Agreement and the
Company refunded all deposits paid under the Agreement.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2014, deposits received represented down payments
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties under development and sale contracts of properties held
for sale of the Group. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties
when they were sfill under development. As confracted with customers,
deposits were paid fo the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale
contracts. Such amounts held by the Group are nonrinterestbearing.
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31. MESRITEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
=5 GROUP
—E-|mF “3-=%
2014 2013
ER ER
Fil= ik
Effective Fffective
interest rate HR THT  interest rate R ThEx
(% Maturity — HK$000 Moty  HK$O00
B Unsecured:
FITER Bank loans 1434 20142017 481,824 14-34 20132017 720,636
RER Secured:
FITER Bank loans 1727 20142017 13,780 1.7-2.7 20132017 20,174
PHER Instalment loans 1.7 20142031 90,462 1.7 20132031 95018
104,242 115,192
RITEEEE Total bank borrowings 586,066 835,828
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FEr &L
HK$000 HK$ 000
RETHNEB A - Analysed info:
BRTHBEANERZRITEE Bank borrowings repayable:
R—FRSIREKE Within one year or on demand 252,112 109,786
FE_F In the second year 109,351 235,301
F-FEFTF(DHEEEMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 156,281 417,802
BRnEF Beyond five years 68,322 72,939
586,066 835,828
AR—FAEE  DER Portion due within one year,
mBAEZHD classified as current liabilities (252,112)  (109,786)
REEE S long term portion 333,954 726,042
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B EERITEE(E)

REEAHTE  ARBDEARHE
SRR SITHRO,940,000587T
(ZF—=% : 16,929,000 7T ) B3t
ABIERH B RITIEE - LA AR
MBS R BHRTER -

RIBRTER B REAR - HERT
EXRCEEESERA: RZT—NF
E—E-—ZHF=ZRA=+—B2BR—
FRNHIRE KK X 2242,172,000
B T ’&92,857,0008 T K= &
—NERZFT-—=F=ZA=+—HZ
BRE_EX2113,191,000% T
%.242,290,000%& T K= —MF
E—E-—ZH=ZR=1+—B2BRE
—FEFNF(BREEEMF)XMNZ
162,381,000 7T K&k427,742,000
BT RZE-—NFR-IT-—=F=
A=+ —BZERAFNR EZRZ
68,322,000/ 7T K 72,939,000/87T

R-E-—NEF=R=1+—H" ' ~&H
ZERBTEEDAREBRRE
RZE&EE D 7 /198,976,000
TT(ZZ — =% :210,056,0007% 7T )
% 22,530,000 (= T — = %
22,530,000/ 7) 2 L R EF - R
(MR 14) - BREDE(ME
15)1EEH -

A& B 2 BEMRITEE 4,549,0007%8
TT(ZE—=%:11,353,000/& )5
REBR AT BB HEER -

B ARABREETHBAR=
=4 WERAR-MBEAT)
{82 HRARTRR (3 38) -

AKBRABRITEEGR TSN X
B RITEEZREERE QA FENE
% o

AERE 2 RITEFABTATE
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in the
amount of HK$9,940,000 (2013: HK$16,929,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed info bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$242,172,000 and
HK$92,857,000 payable within one year or on demand as at
31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively; HK$113,191,000 and
HK$242,290,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2014
and 2013, respectively; HK$162,381,000 and HK$427,742,000
payable in the third fo fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2014 and
2013, respectively; HK$68,322,000 and HK$72,939,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's secured bank borowings were
secured by cerfain of ifs land and buildings, equipment and machinery
(nofe 14) and an investment property (note 15) with carrying amounts of
HK$198,976,000 (2013: HK$210,056,000) and HK$22,530,000
(2013: HK$22,530,000), respectively.

The Group's unsecured bank borrowing amounting to HK$4,549,000
(2013: HK$11,353,000] is guaranteed by the government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of its subsidiaries (201 3:
subsidiaries and an associate] (nofe 38).

Al of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating interest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —ZE—WE=A=+—RH
32" RERIE 32. DEFERRED TAX

RAFERN - EXHAREREEZE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

EPUNNE as follows:
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
%5 GROUP
)
HBHAEE
Bl wER
#EWE  Allowance in
Revaluation excess of B
of investment related  Withholding 5
properties  depreciation taxes Total
FET T FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZZ—ZFMA—H At Apil 2012 (83,503 (21,034) (104,174) (208,711)
FRRBIEEETA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(0% ) 2B fo the statement of profit or loss
A (FIEE10) during the year [note 10) (7,343) 3,924 691 (2,728]
SR EAM—K Withholding tax paid
B8 X R on repatriation of eamings
Z B s A from a subsidiary in
Z T Mainland China = = 1,249 1,249
BEE 5, 8B Exchange realignment (1,197) = (1,301] (2,498
RZT—=F At 31 March 2013 and
=RA=+—Hk 1 April 2013
—E—=FmA—H (92,043) (17,110) (103,535) (212,688
FRNBIEEKFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(%) Z fo the statement of profit or loss
EERIA(KTEE 10) during the year [note 10} (10,275) 3,298 (36,242) (43,219
b 5 G Exchange realignment 129 — 479 608
RZZE—mF At 31 March 2014
—A=+—§ (102,189)  (13,812)  (139,298)  (255,299)
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32. EEMIA(E) 32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
RAFERN  BERBEABEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
BT : (8) as follows: /Conta)
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets
&8 GROUP
+ it I ER
BE
Provision
of land
appreciation
tax
FAT
HK$ 000
RZE——FMA—H At 1 April 2012 99,980
FARBRRTR Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss
ZIEER A (FIFE 10) during the year [nofe 10) (15,537)
0 5 Exchange realignment 1,058
RZZE—=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013 and
kZZE—=FMA—H 1 April 2013 85,501
FRARBRRTR Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss
ZEREHEA(KIEE10) during the year (note 10) (51,705)
BEE 5% 8% Exchange realignment 776
RZZE-WE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 34,572
AEERBEBELEZHNEBER The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$304,665,000
304,665,000/ T(= & — = & (2013: HK$255,622,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
255,622,000/ 7 ) @ A F{EE R HR 4K against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
HILRBBE 2 RRIZRRERTORN arose. Deferred fox assets have not been recognised in respect of these
RPELEFER 2 MBRARMEE 22 losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
BRANSHERARELENREE - B some fime and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
FERTUE N AN R BB B REED available against which the tax losses can be ufilised.
ATRE ©

£ K 2013/2014 145



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

146

32, RERIE(E)

REFEEXAETATERAER
%] RPBIRALHINE R E A E
IMREET IR BB BB 10% B
B ZBRER-_FTTN\F-—A—RiE
ERLERN-—FETLF+-A=1—
AZ&RELZEN - i E R EEIN
REZEMERIZERITATAGE @ A
AL AR 2 BIMBHB R - Fift - K
X V8 Sl e v ) VNG
RE—ETN\F-A-RARELZEF
k3 2 BB BN TRIOH -

ARANRN FEBRZ RELEEFFH
BHER -
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —ZE—WE=A=+—RH

32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared 1o foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding fax rate may be applied if there
is a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income fax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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BRITRERE -
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REE-T-NF=-A=1t—HLF
g ARR T%Hﬂ&?&ﬁﬁﬁﬁu RRE(E
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33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
“E-ME Z—T—=F
2014 2013
FiE FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
874,665,903 (2013: 872,665,903)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
87,466 87,266

34.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 2,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$1.46
per share pursuant to the exercise of the Company’s share options for

total cash consideration, before expenses of HK$2,920,000. An
amount of HK$819,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
o the share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in nofe 34
o the financial stafements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 28 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2002 Scheme') for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
fo eligible participants who confribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by a
new share option scheme with effect from the conclusion of the special
general meeting held on 8 August 2012 [the “2012 Scheme).

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitied fo
be granted under the 2012 Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No share option has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year.
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BT EI(E)

ARTAZ =T FHEMENT -

EL:)

Purpose

AERSEE
Eligible Participants

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

REZR(EERNEUREBRENRBEZR2 AL R
BHARAR,/ ZEAMHBRR(RE]D R/ FIAEEEAKER
ARAEARTN S EAER XY  ERMEREARIAR
ZRERZEE  FRAER2EEBEMENERLAEE A
B ARAARBRARBRRZ BB G S AREAER
SRENZEELB N RERMER AR 7%?‘}%% ¥
BURFHERRUARAREREEBRIBEERKAEEEZ
%E%EE\ g
To enable the Board of Direcfors (the “Board”] fo grant options fo
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever)
of the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries (*Group”) and/or any
of the entities in which any member of the Group holds any equity
inferest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group in the interests and benefits of
the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole, while
at the same time allowing the eligible participants o share the fruits of
the Company's business achieved through their effort and confribution,
as well as fo enable the Group fo recruit high quality employees who
are valuable to the management and long ferm business and financial
goals and success of the Group.

ER2E_Z-ZFiEz AL BIRRBISERMEA B sk
EREREBAFRBEES TRAE FRBEXEFR(EREH
17 BT RB R TER ) A EEZREER RS UHEH AR
R/SERHBARLR, REMERER ¥  BRIER(RE
AEMAE)E BRI A R AEBEAARE - FAA - BE - K
BA - fEmsRERGInER  BE g MHRIRE) &
P D RBMBERAERH -
A person who is enfitled fo participate in the 2012 Scheme, being any
fulHime or parttime employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the interested
entiies and any confractors, advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers or
providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries, materials or
services), customers, disfributors, business ally or joint venture partners
of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Board, will
contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited to the business,
development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever) of the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or any of the interested

entities.



34. BIRETEI(E)
RARBlz —E——FHEHPENMT :

(&)

A T 81T BRARAE R K
RERFERBBEC BT
BARZBD

Total number of ordinary shares
available for issue and the percentage
of the issued share capital that it
represents as at the date of

the annual report

BH2HE L ERICE
Maximum entiflement of each
participant
REBEREVAREE SR
Period within which the securities
must be faken up under an option

TR AT /B 35 B IR 2 A (K HARR
Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

ISESOISTANE S
Amount payable on acceptance
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Contd]

87,266,590 RE B R EBITRA 2 10% (GrEEERRA R AR
RERASHH =T —=—FN\A/\NHZ872,665903REE/TH
f3) o

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meeting on 8 August 2012.

TMSEBMEM 12 AREAR RS BITRAZ 1% °
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

HEmEERRNTEREENBET RSN TEZARA «
Pt < 2IH B M BN H A BB E B AERT 1+ (10)F A -
To be defermined by the Board on a casetocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified to the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry
date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemed.

HHEZRBIEETE -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

Nil.
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34. BR#EEI(E) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
ARBZ_E—_FFEHENT : A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Contd)
(&)
BETRECEE SLEREEBREM S -
Basis for determining the exercise price In respect of any particular option:

RITEBRERENARE 2 BRRNER AEERKEE -
—ZFi 22 BRRNEHBERER R T ER2RERERE LR
T HETRENMSIRUATRERRSE

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on o
casetocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Scheme,
in its absolute discrefion upon the grant of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the following:

() BfpzmEfE:

the nominal value of a share;

b BRERLEH (ARAEXRH) REBRMcERRERMEZ
BHE : &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

€ EBEEBRERLEHALO)/ELXANBIMZEARER
PR 2 B P M8 & sk
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBBE(LX o) E (M) 2TREMER) - JRAEERRIE
TR CFHEATARETRR)RNBEEN T FHERE
ZHBAEHERAETRE AR TEHE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo a) fo [c) above] as may be adjusted by the Board from fime fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Scheme concerning adjusiments of,

inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any relevant event
as defined in the 2012 Scheme.

SRl Z BT FE “E——FHEa T ——F )\ ANBE (10 FHEIAE AL
The remaining life of the scheme RE-—FNR+BEARTZ L ¥R ER °

The 2012 Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.

BERR D S B T A AU IR B 3 ik Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
KRG LREZHER o at shareholders” meefings.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

—ET_FiE) (a] 2002 Scheme

FARBE-_TT _FEHAT
fiez BT

=) At beginning of year

FRITE

R At end of year

RB|ERR - WEERITEZRE
i

RBE-_ZT——F=H=t—H
FEEREZBREZ X TER
1,177,000 (& 70.3%8 T
F0468TT)  HRARKERE
E_T-=F=R=1+—BIL#%F
BB RERERHER S 107,00078
TC © FRILERERBRERX -

REBE-ZT—ME=A=+—H
L F 171 2,000,000 1 B8 % 1
B 172,000,000 g A" A B &
AR - A K 200,000 T AL AR
% 2,720,000 7t % 15 ' & (40
BRETTRXZAL - BN BER
E LRI

=z

RREPRREZHEZENH
HRER BRE_TT_F5t
g ARRYE(CE-=F:
2,000,000 17) AR AE W RTTHE °

Exercised during the year

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002
Scheme during the year:

—E-MEF —F =%
2014 2013

I3 il S
TfeE Bk Te(E BhE
Weighted LS Weighted 28
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of opfions
5714 F 574 T
BT ‘000 BT 000

HK$ HK$

per share per share
1.46 2,000 1.46 2,000
1.46 (2,000) - —
— — 1.46 2,000

No share opfion was oufstanding as at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 March 2011 was HK$1,177,000 (HK$0.3 to HK$0.46
each), of which the Group recognised a share opfion expense

of HK$107,000 during the year ended 31 March 2013. No

share option expense was recognised during the year.

The 2,000,000 share opfions exercised during the year ended
31 March 2014 resulted in the issue of 2,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$200,000
and share premium of HK$2,720,000 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period and up fo the date of approval
of these financial statements, the Company had no (2013:
2,000,000) share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

(b6) 2012 Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2014 and up fo the date of
approval of these financial stafements, no share option under the
2012 Scheme was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

35. RESERVES

(a)  Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
fo statutory reserves which are restricted as fo use.
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

AT Apil 2012

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive
expense for the year
Equitysetled share option

arrangements

FESRMENZ 2012 final dividend
AR S
“E-=FhHRS

declared and paid
2013 inferim dividend

MZE-=%=A=1—H At 3] March 2013 and

kZE-=#NA-AH
AEERH

ER2ERELR

{TiEiRRE

1 Apiil 2013
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year
Exercise of share opfions

“E-=FEERLEAZ 2013 findl dividend

REKE

declared and paid

RZZ-ME=A=1—A A 31 March 2014

(b) Company

R B R AR A

W% $it 3 W NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —E—ME=A=+—H

RyaER BRERE

Share  BIABH Share  RERA
it premium ~ Confributed opfion  Retained act
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
TET TET TET T TiET
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$ 000
560,322 29,950 712 207,994 798978
- - - (10,208)  (10,208)
- - - (10,208)  (10,208)
- - 107 - 107
12 - - - [34907)  (34,907)
12 - - = (17453) (17,453
560,322 29,950 819 145426 736,517
= = = 90,488 90,488
= = = 90,488 90,488
33, 34 3,539 - (819) - 2,720
12 - - S (43,633 [43,639)
563,861 29,950 - 192281 786,092
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(6) Company (Contd)

The confributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the
Company's shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the Company may make distributions
fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumstances.

The profit of HK$90,488,000 for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: loss of HK$10,208,000) included impairment
of amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$17,507,000 (201 3:
HK$112,218,000) and gain on disposal of partial interest in
a subsidiary of HK$125,000,000 (2013: Nil). The loss for the
year ended 31 March 2013 also included dividend income
of HK$110,800,000 received from certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14) and
its investment properties (note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
fo thirty six months. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants and customers fo pay security deposits and provide
for periodic renfal adjustments according fo the then prevailing
market conditions.



. REBENZHE)

(o) TEBHBEA(E)

RBEHR  AEEREREEHE
PREPRIL A HHLZH
A AT F 8 2 R R AR R R R
SR

—FR
“EETF(BREEMF)

(b) 1ERAEA

$%E@ﬁm%ﬁ%ﬁw AR
HEMNT=F++= S
ﬁ%?%“*%% f€~=1
BEkETHS

RBEIE - REBBRETAH

HREHAON A T FHZ R KR
BRI TEENAT

—FR
F_EFhE(BREREME)

ARBRHRE AR BAERLE
BOR(—F—=F: &)

[ ]
R B R AR A

%%ﬁﬁmﬁNmmmnmmmmmmmms
1 March 2014 —ZE—mME=A=+—H

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) As lessor (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

&8

GROUP
—F-MFE —F=F
2014 2013
FET &L
HK$000 HK$ 000
Within one year 19,943 12,158
In the second o fifth years, inclusive 12,583 1,110
32,526 13,268

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
fo seventy ftwo months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

£8

GROUP
“E-mFE =%
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
Within one year 10,129 26,322
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 6,032 6,249
16,161 32,571

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at
the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).
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37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 36(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

&8
GROUP
—F-mFE —F=F
2014 2013
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties:
— confracted, but not provided for 58,803 10,208
— authorised, but not contracted for 8,907 =
67,710 10,208
Construction works relafing fo properties
under development:
— contracted, but not provided for 1,104,842 1,300,361
— authorised, but not contracted for 491,816 248,493
1,596,658 1,548,854

The Company had no significant commitments at the end of the
reporfing period (2013: Nil].
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RI|EER - RRBBWMEAELEE At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
ZHAREBEWT n the financial stafements were as follows:
] A
GROUP COMPANY
—B-mFE —F-=Ff —F-NF T =F
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FAT FET FAT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
SLE 1A Guarantees given fo financial
AT ALH#E institutions in connection with
—REEER general credit facilities
Méa T2 H#IR granted fo:
—MIB AR — subsidiaries — = 954,323 1,500,490
——FBE AT — an associate — 51,280 — 51,280
HEARES Guarantees in respect of
RATAL performance bonds
R Z IR - in relation fo:
—MEAR — subsidiaries 533,328 342,818 533,328 342,818
——MEEE AT — an associate — 35,229 - 35,229
533,328 429,327 1,487,651 1,929,817
39. BEALRS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BREBNZSHBERERAMM A - K Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
SENFREMBEALIITIRS : had the following transactions with related parties during the year:
(o) HEEFEA +2HKIEERZTF {a)  Outstanding balance with related parties
Fﬁ&iﬁgﬁiﬁ & B BEE N A Details of the Group's balances with its associates and related
REBERRRIBHREZFED B companies as at the end of the reporting period are included in

ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁW&S&M 1®
%é%@ﬂﬁ%%mmﬁ%ﬁ
B FARAKEEZHERT

BRKEFO6,779,000% 7T ° B"iﬁ
HHIR AN B B TSRS ) B
ERAL—REEEFMET
Z FERE N B IR E 38

notes 18 and 24, respectively, fo the financial statements. The
maximum amount due from a related company outstanding during
the year was HK$6,779,000 as disclosed pursuant fo Section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Guarantees
given by the Group fo financial insfitutions in connection with
general credit facilities granfed fo its associates at the end of
the reporting period are included in note 38 fo the financial

stafements.
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39. MEALRZ(E) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(b) FEELEEEASZHH (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
&8
GROUP
—E-mE —ZZT-—=F
2014 2013
FHET TIET
HK$000 HK$000
rEHEE R Short term employee benefits 81,024 60,242
PARRHE 2 1+ 2 BB AR HE % 1 Equity-setfled share option expense — 107
R E7 Postemployment benefits 149 168
ENTEIRERAS Total compensation paid fo
2 aeEE key management personnel 81,173 60,517
ERESMEFRERTBEHRE Further defails of directors' remuneration are included in note 8 fo
Bifsr 8 the financial stafements.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Other transactions with TBC and TTCL, related
companies of the Group:

(d)

(1)

(2)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, TBC subcontracted
engineering and mechanical works of approximately
HK$66.4 million to Tysan Engineering (H.K.) Company
limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, TBC and
TTCL paid management fees of HK$563,000 and
HK$897,000, respectively, for the period from 1 April
2013 to 17 January 2014; and HK$144,000 and
HK$90,000, respectively, for the period from 18 January
2014 1o 31 March 2014 [year ended 31 March 2013:
HK$842,000 and HK$1,020,000) to the Group,
respectively.

These fransactions were entered info by the Group and ifs related

companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group sold
properiies held for sale fo its key management personnel and their
close family members for a consideration of HK$7,282,000.
These properties were sold according to prices and conditions

similar to those offered to other non-elated customers of the

Group.

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1), (c)(2) and (d)

above and the acquisition and disposals as detailed in notes 18(e),

40 and 41(b) to the financial statements also constitute connected

fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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40. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated
22 November 2013], Duncan Properties Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tysan Building Construction
(China) Limited (“TBCCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TBC which
was a then 49% owned associate, entered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which, Duncan Properties Limited acquired 20%
equity interest in Great Prosper limited from TBCCL and the interest-
free shareholder's loan of HK$31,560,000 owing by Great Prosper
Limited to TBCCL at a cash consideration of HK$129,412,000 (of
which HK$97,852,000 is for the acquisition of the equity inferest in
Great Prosper limited and HK$31,560,000 is for the setflement of the
shareholder loan) (“Great Prosper Acquisition”).

TBCCL has underiaken that, immediately after completion of the Great
Prosper Acquisifion, it applied the total proceeds of HK$129,412,000
received from the Great Prosper Acquisition in repayment of all its
shareholder’s loan and distributed the remaining balance by way of
dividend to its sole shareholder, TBC, prior fo the consummation of the
Tysan Building Consiruction Disposal (note 18lel(i]). TBC then disfributed
the whole amount being received as dividend fo ifs then shareholders.
Since the Group then owned 49% equity inferest in TBC, the Group
received a dividend of HK$63,412,000 from TBC. As the Group
directly held 80% and indirectly held 9.8% equity interests in Great
Prosper Limited through Duncan Properties Limited and the 49%owned
then associate, TBC, respectively, the Group effectively acquired 10.2%
interest in Great Prosper limited through the Great Prosper Acquisifion.
The Great Prosper Acquisition was completed on 14 January 2014.
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ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)

Upon completion of the Great Prosper Acquisition, Great Prosper
limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Great Prosper Acquisition did not result in any change in control
by the Company over Great Prosper limited and such acquisifion was
accounted for as an equity fransaction. Accordingly, the debit balance
of HK$32,989,000, between the net outflow of HK$66,000,000,
being the consideration of HK$129,412,000 and the dividend
received of HK$63,412,000, and aggregate amounts of the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest of HK$16,916,000 and
51% share of the loan from the then associate of HK$3 1,560,000,
of HK$16,095,000, was recorded in the retained profits in the
equity. The remaining 49% share of loan from the then associate of
HK$ 15,465,000 was eliminated with interest in an associate.

Further details of the Great Prosper Acquisition are set out in the
Company's circular dated 25 November 2013.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 30 June 2012, the Group disposed of its 5% equity inferest
in Jetroyal Limited, a then 80%-owned subsidiary, to a direcfor of
Jetroyal Limited at a consideration of HK$68,000. The difference
of approximately HK$813,000 between the consideration and
the non-controlling interest's share of assets and liabilities at the
date of disposal was debited to the Group's retained profits.
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41.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(bl

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by supplemental agreements
dated 18 August 2013 and 22 November 2013), the
Company and Fortunate Pool entered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which, the Company disposed of its
40% equity inferest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong Limited
and an interest-free shareholder's loan owing by Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong Limited to the Company, to Fortunate
Pool for a cash consideration of HK$ 157,000,000 (of which
HK$125,000,000 is for the acquisition of the equity interest in
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited and HK$32,000,000
is for the sefflement of an inferestfree shareholder's loan) (“Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong) Disposal’). The Tysan Foundation (Hong
Kong] Disposal was completed on 17 January 2014,

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Foundation
[Hong Kong) Disposal, Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited
became a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The financial
results of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group continued to
be consolidated info the Company's consolidated financial
stafements and such disposal was accounted for as an equity
fransaction.

The debit difference of HK$48,087,000 between the
consideration for the equity inferest of HK$ 125,000,000 and the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests of HK$173,087,000
was recorded in the refained profits in the equity.

Further details of the Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Disposal are
set out in the Company's circular dated 25 November 2013.
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42. BRERIE S 2EMIA 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBEHR SHEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
K as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
£zH GROUP
TREE Financial assefs
—E-Jf = =
2014 2013
BATE
TAB#Z
il
AR E Financial
THEE assefs
E¥R  Available- E#R  dtfairvale
RUHE for-sole FEWEIE  through profit
loansond ~ financial @5 loonsand  orloss - held &t
receivables assels Totl  receivobles  for frading Totol

FiEr FiEr FiEr TEL L TAT
HKS000  HK$000  HK$O0O  HKSOOO  HK$O00  HK$000

AfnERE Availableforsale investment - 1,250 1,250 = = =
BERRAZRR Amounts due from associates - - - 2115 = 2115
BENAZER loans to associates = = = 8,150 - 8,150
BATEF ARG ZRE  Investments of fair value

hrough profit or loss - - - - 2378 72373
EWE SR Trade receivables 777797 - 777,797 735,062 = 735,062
Eftfelkzua Other receivables 31,842 - 31,842 18,601 = 18,601
THER Time deposils 1,106,219 - 1,106,219 529,582 = 529,582
TRHEE Restricted cash 3,241 - 3,241 60,207 = 60,207
ReRBTER Cash and bank balances 441,688 - 441,688 488870 - 488,870

2,360,787 1250 2362037 1842587 272,373 2114960
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42, BERE D 2 EMTA(E)

£E(E)

ERESEHR
At ERR
IR
RS
RE—RBELAZER

Trade payables

Other payables

Derivative financial instrumens
Inferest-bearing bank borrowings
Loan from on associate
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

GROUP (Contd)

Financial liabilities

—E-pE %=
2014 2013

BOYHE BATE

AR AREZ

EREE ERAE

-HFEE i

&%  Finonciol HHE  Finoncid

BASIERZ  labiles ot RAFIFZ  lobiles of

SHEE  foirvolue ERBE  fairvole

Financial through Financiol through

liobilities ot~ profit or icbilfies ot profit or
amorfised  loss - held @5 onofsed  loss-held &t
cost  for trading Tofal cost  forrading Toldl
FEr FiEr FiEr TEL L L
HK$000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS0OO
302,732 - 302732 301,2% - 301,256
11,527 = 11,527 6,188 - 6,188
- 4113 4113 - 8,205 8,205
586,066 - 586066 835828 - 835828
= = = 24,560 - 24,560
900,325 4113 904,438 116/,832 8,205 1,176,037
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42. BERZ 2R T E(Z) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
A COMPANY

THEE Financial assets

“E-NFE —T—=fF

2014 2013

EXR BRk

il ENE] FEMRIB

Loans and loans and

receivables  receivables
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

HoA e WK IE Other receivables 3,323 =
RITEETT Bank balances 5,504 257
8,827 257

= Financial liabilities
B —ZT—=F
2014 2013
HIERZ 5182
cRBE THARE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities af

amortised cost amortised cost
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

RIBRRZ5IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 144,932 222 445
PR E H R Trade payables 254 897
H fth T 5008 Other payables 125 109

145,311 223,451
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43. EMI B2 AFESREE 43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEEESZEHFHR(FERAFA The Group enters info derivative financial instruments with various
FENRzRBB)IIVITESRT counterparties, principally financial instituions with AAA credit ratings.
A fTESRTA(BENXEH) KA Derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, are
BEBHRER B - ZEBRMAZIETS measured using forward price method. The model incorporates various
AIBREAZUE - BRERDHERNE market observable inputs including the current market price and interest
HAR o rafe curves.

TIEXRFAREEEHIALATE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
ATEEREE Group's financial instruments:
RE-E-NFER-FE—=F=F=1— Assets measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2014 and 2013:
AL FETEZEE -
&8 GROUP
“E-mE 5-ck
2014 2013
NTETERR DTEERR
Fair value measurement using Foir vlue measurement using
i N EN i BX EX
[ ] TRE  fUEE m5HE BE  THER
(18) 8B ABE 8A%E (£1B) BAEE BAYB
Quoed  ($2B)  ($3B) Quoed  (£2E)  ($3E)
price  Significont  Significant pice  Signiicent  Significont
inacive  observoble  unobservable nadve  obsenable  unobsenable
markefs inputs inputs 3t markels inputs inpuls a3t
level ] [level2)  [level3) Totol level 1] feel2  (lewel3] Tolol

T T T T TET tér  TEr  TEn
HS000  HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSO00 HKEODD RSO0 HKEODD RSO0

BATEHABRZRE  Ihvesments of foir value
thiough proft or loss - - - - 3838 268535 - 7373
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RoE—ER —_FE—=F=H=+—

&N FEGZEZEE -
£
fTESRTE Derivafive financicl

insfruments

RZE-—NF=A=+—H ' ~RAf
BEMRAVEFEZEREENRER
AR(ZE—=F:8)-

FRBIERE2EZHIEERFAD
FEFAESH  TESREAERSH
AEBAREHEIE( T —=

&) -
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43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
Liabilities measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2014 and 2013:
GROUP
“E-pF 5%
2014 2013
AVEHERR DB R
Fair volue measurement using Fair value measurement using
R EX EX i E/N BX
M5HE TR TUEE A hE TR TIER
(1) B AIE BAHE (F1E) &AIB BAME
Qued  ($2B) (3B Qued  (£28B)  (£3E)
price  Significant ~ Significant pice  Signficant  Sigrificont
inacive  observable  unobservable imacve  observable  unobsenable
markels inpufs inpufs Bt ket inpus inpuls gt
level ] fleveld)  [leveld) Totol leel 1] feel2  (level | Total
Fér 7L 71 Fér A1 AT FAT A
HE000  HSO000 K000 HKS000  HKSO00 HKSO00  HKSO00 AKS000
- 4113 - 4113 = 8,205 = 8,205

The Company did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
befween level 1 and Level 2 and no fransfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (201 3: Nil).
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4. BiEkERE B ERBER

AEEZFECRTIABERS IR
Bl XRBIRE  EHER  BRE
SRR R E M ERUTUR ~ A FERA
BasRE TEeRIA ENES
BR R EMEMNFBRARRBITEE - %
FEMTAZHBENUBRRAAIE
ARE - BzFTeRTAEH AR R
IANRIEZE R < BEREFIMT o &
BEEENERZFAR - ERER
RAE B REGE £ 18 ©

=EmRE

AEEZEESREESRE MIRITA
7 XRHRES - EREFARERE
ZHR R AR

AREREER S 2 RITHARBERE
ERMER T 2R EER - BURTT
BERERERZEERBRTA

AEBEERRIEREEEKES
ERREMEKRE - EREFEEER
BRERESER  NAKBEEY 22
RRERYAEX - AEEYBEERMR
BESTZER - AESZERD HE
ZERFHUFREP - ABEAKEEER
RERKE SRR N EMRTIE (5
ERR < ELEBBERMBRRMEE
24 K254 -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, restricted cash, fime deposits, frade and other receivables,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments, frade and ofher payables and bank borrowings. Defails
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective nofes fo
these financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks are sef out
below. Management manages and monifors these exposures fo ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective

manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances,
restricted cash, fime deposits, and frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
infernafional creditrafing agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual frade debt on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo bad debts is not
significant. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with the exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
fo credit risk arising from frade and other receivables are disclosed in
nofes 24 and 25 fo the financial statements.
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1 March 2014 —F-—ME=A=+—H
HBEREEEERBE(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)
T m 2 Interest rate risk
ZIKEIEEﬁZﬂY“@JH 2 Z R The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly aftributable
BRITBEES - FREERAEER fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
B M) 2 B $E. E AT 3 B | e expose the Group to interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
BOR - BEN - BEEBERAEERN have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
TH i 2 )2 [\ e Y B 5 R B AT SL A the Group's interest rate exposure and considers entering info interest
Kz LR DM Z R B - rate swaps to reduce ifs exposure to interest rate fluctuations should the
need arise.
TRIITEMBEMEIRFIE 2B The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
AT AEBZBREAGENGERYEF possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
BREZFE)RASE 2w (Rt of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
BB A EN) B EHRAEA borrowings) and the Group's equity (before any impact on fax).
BB GURIE -
]
GROUP
BRBLAT A
i,/ C)
FIZ 3 Increase/
Increase (decrease)  REFRED *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  before tax in equity*
% TIET TET
% HK$000 HK$ 000
—E-mE 2014
FITER Bank loans 1 (5,877) -
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 1 2,000 —
—F=F 2013
RITER Bank loans 1 (8,377) =
TEERI A Derivative financial instruments ] 2,000 =
* TEIERE & * Excluding retained profits
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4. BBEREEEERBE(E)
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TRITRBE SR - A LS

BRETBZERT  AEEZ BRI
A AEREERARZATEERE
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R -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Euro exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

&=
GROUP
BB AN @A

/() g

XL Increase/ 10,/ GRA)*
Increase in (decrease)  Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate  before tax in equity*

% THT THT
2 HK$000 HK$ 000

—E-F 2014
BT R BITsS2 I Hong Kong dollar weakens

against Euro 5 45 —
BT A BMITRS I Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against Euro 5 (45) -
—z=¢ 2013
fe& T R BT 85 5 I Hong Kong dollar weakens

against Euro 5 852 —
& TR BT e % I Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against Euro 5 (852) =

o T EREEREEN

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Excluding refained profits
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44. BIBEBEEBFERBEK(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

BB LG Liquidity risk
AEEZ ARRERMARTEEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
BREDEHEEEM 2 BRFTE - K of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
SETHRIETEZSMN  BRE Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
BT E IR RE T M A5 o adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
BIFEATARBIRRN - ATEIIARE The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
BRARARBEHR oM A E2IH liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
B: undiscounted payments, is as follows:
%8 GROUP
=
2014
128 A AR
REREE Less than 1855 SENE @t
On demand 12months  Tto5years  Over 5 years Total

TEn FEn FiET FEn FEr
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

BN Trade payables - 302,732 - - 302,732
HftEMFIE Other payables - 11,527 - - 11,527
fTEemTHE Derivative financial instruments - 4113 - - 4113
ERTEE* Interestbearing bank
borrowings’ 16,929 236,056 266,343 68,322 587,650
REOREERANEAR Guaranteed in respect of
{2 iR performance bonds in
relation fo subsidiaries 533,328 - - - 533,328

550,257 554,428 266,343 68,322 1,439,350
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BEEREE B ERBER(E)

MEELEGE ()
KB(&E)
ENEHER Trade payables

EMEMHR

(TESRTA Derivative financial instruments
fERTRE* Inferest bearing bank

RE-EBERFZER
SEBHRER—FBERE  Guarontees given fo financial

ifer

REOREEANTAL

feiti 2 fh performance bonds in
relation to:
—~HBAT] - subsidiaries
——REE AT - an associate
: 2 mER-FT-Z£=ZA

Other payables

borrowings”

loan from an associate

44.

—REEEZM instifutions in connection with

LF R

general credit facilfies

granted fo an associate

[

+— MERTEERREHA
RESESIGOUR T ERA BRI
FBER BREEEFRZRITEHRD A
#16,929,0007% 7T & 27,727,000
7L At BRI E - %
FLRONBRRERENEE -
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Guarantees in respect of

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Conra)

GROUP (Cont'd)

o
2013
12 AR
RERER Less than 1255 SENE a5t
On demand 12months ~ Tio5years  Over 5 years Total

TET TR TET T TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

- 301,256 - - 301,256
- 6,188 - - 6,188
- - 8,205 - 8,205

27,727 82,293 054,779 72939 837,738

24,560 - - - 24,560
51,280 - - - 51,280
342,818 - - - 342,818
35,229 - - - 35,229

481,614 389,737 062,984 72,939 1,607,274

* Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of

HK$16,929,000 and HK$27,727,000 as at 31 March 2014 and
2013, respectively, which confain a repayment on demand clause
giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
classified as on demand.



44. BIBEBEEBFERBEK(E)

BB AR ()

BEHG LRBRERERE  FEEM
BEZERTEFRERBERES TS
RI2EARNZEES  UESRBZER
TEFEeRBRAMBEMBIEEE
B NMELBETEREZETIIEE : K
EENMBRRENEEB 2 HBEMI -
AEBETERZEZER  YEENSE
BRASERA—MERKRER - BR
BOIERZEF RZZ—HWFE=A
=+—H IEHFHERI12EAURE
243,045,000 T (ZE — = 4 :
03,091,000% L) : R—ERAF(BE
BEREME) Ef 276,283,000 T(=
T — =4:671,708000% T ) B
A FEM68,322,0008 T(—F
—=%:72,939,00057T) °

NS

RWBAR 2 HE Amounts due fo subsidiaries

B ERER Trade poyables

Eft R Other payables

AIBHERMBERARSE  Cuarontees given fo financial
—RIEEEHRM insfitufions in connection with
BT ER general credit facilfies

44.

granted fo subsidiaries

REOREEAMELT
fEitZ iR

fo subsidiaries

Guarantees in respect of
performance bonds in relation
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont @)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
do not believe that the bank loans will be called in ifs entirety within
12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as sef ouf in the respective
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial statements;
the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on fime. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the
maturity terms at 31 March 2014 are HK$243,045,000 (2013:
HK$93,091,000) payable less than 12 months; HK$276,283,000
(2013: HK$671,708,000] payable in one fo five years, inclusive;
HK$68,322,000 (2013: HK$72,939,000) payable over five years.

COMPANY
e kS
2014
12f8R AR
REXEE Less than 185%F SENE @t
On demand 12months ~ Tto5years  Over 5 years Total
T FiEr FEr FiEr FiEr
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
144,932 = = = 144,932
= 254 = = 254
_ 125 = - 125
954,323 = = = 954,323
533,328 = = = 533,328
1,632,583 379 — - 1,632,962
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4. BBEREEEERBE(E) 44.

HEBETEE(E)

N

RWBARZHE Amounts due fo subsidiaries

ENESEN Trode payables

Eft TR Other payables

RAUBEERMATATHE  Guarantees given fo financial
—RIEEEHRM insfitufions in connection with
BT ER: general credit facilfies

granted fo:

-HBAR - subsidiaries
——FBERT - an associole

REOREZANTAL
it iR

Guarantees in respect of
performance bonds

in relation fo:

~HELR - subsidiaries
——REE R - an associate
BEAEE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Conra)
COMPANY
o
2013
1218 AR

RERER Less than 1255 SENE a5t
On demand 12months ~ Tio5years  Over 5 years Total
THET TR TET T TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
222,445 - - - 222,445
- 897 - - 897
- 109 - - 109
1,500,490 - - - 1,500,490
51,280 - - - 51,280
342,818 - - - 342,818
35,229 - - - 35,229
2,152,262 1,006 - - 2,153,268

Capital management

AEBEAEE T BB RAERAER
ERENERECEEB RAULER
BFERFEERE A ERBIL &K
LA RE(E -

A BRI B R EELEA
B AR B - BERSERAAE
# ARERERELHFRRZ B
B RERRZ EARSETHR, - B
BE_Z-—NE=A=+—BER=%
—=F=A=—ALFER - AR
AEEZ AIE BRRRF A S
A -
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The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to
safeguard the Company's ability fo continve as a going concem and
fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order fo support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
fo it in light of changes in economic condifions. To maintain or adjust
the capital sfructure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capifal during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31
March 2013.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management (Cont d)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
mainfain the gearing rafio at not more than 50%. Net debt includes
frade payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and a loan from an associate less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of the Group. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

“E-mFE —T—=F

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

e B SR Trade payables 302,732 301,256

H fth T 500R Other payables 11,527 6,188

MTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments 4,113 8,205

fit SRITIEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 586,066 835,828

RE—HE AR ZER Loan from an associate — 24,560

B EHITFER less: Time deposits (1,106,219) (529,582

XBRHRE Restricted cash (3,241) (60,207)

e RRITERF Cash and bank balances (441,688)  (488,870)

aff/ (Re)FE Net debt/(cash] (646,710) 97,378

B Total equity 2,711,277 2,369,969

VN =R Gearing ratio TEA 4%
B RS dR R 2 B 45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEERR-Z-MERA=TRAER
RETIEME K

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 June 2014.
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